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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yuguo, aged 67, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 16 August 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of the
board of directors on 22 September 2017. He was also appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

Since |19 September 2018 and 16 June 2020, Mr. Li has been an executive
director and chief executive officer of Future Bright Mining Holdings
Limited (“Future Bright"), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code:
2212) respectively, in which Mr. Yang Xiaogiang (a Non-Executive Director
of the Company) and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) are executive directors. He
has been a non-executive director of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd., a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2066)
(“Shengjing Bank™) from July 2013 to March 2021 and the vice chairman of
the board of directors of that bank from June 2014 to February 2018. He
has been the chairman of Liaoning Huibao International Investment Group
Co., Ltd* (REEBRBEKELEEFR A A]) since June 2013 and the
chairman of Beijing Jiutai Group Co., Ltd.* (At RN LB BR A 7)) since
May 1993. Prior to that, he successively worked at the planning bureau of
the China Association for Science and Technology ({F BIRIZ T 2) as
principal staff, deputy chief and chief of the accounting division from August
1983 to October 1992.

Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics

(formerly known as Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics* (7T 78 81 4%

ERT)) (Jiangxi, PRC) in July 1983, majoring in industrial accounting.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 26 April 2017 and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on | August 2018.

He has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Since 8
March 2018, Mr. Liu has been an executive director of Mindtell Technology
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8611). He has been an executive director of Future Bright (Stock Code:
2212) since 9 August 2019, in which Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company) is an executive director and the chief
executive officer and Mr. Yang Xiaogiang (a Non-Executive Director of
the Company) is an executive director. He was also the chief executive
officer of Future Bright from 26 October 2018 to 16 June 2020. He was
an independent non-executive director of Luen Wong Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8217) between March 2016 and December 2017.

In February 1994, he graduated from Dalhousie University in Canada with
a Bachelor of Commerce.

Ms. Guo Yumei, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 18 April 2018. She was also appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

She has been an executive director and legal representative of Beijing
Qiaofeng Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd* Gt RELHEBR A A, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since February 2018. Ms. Guo
currently also serves as director of Guangxi Huatai Mining Industries Co.,

Lid* (BERERBEARRAAF)).

Ms. Guo graduated from Party School of CPC Beijing Municipal Committee*
AERTZER) in July 2008.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Xiaoqiang, aged 50, was appointed as a Non-executive

Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company on |3 September 2018.

Mr. Yang had been a non-executive director of Future Bright (Stock Code:
2212) since 19 September 2018 and re-designated as an executive director
on 22 December 2020, in which Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company) is an executive director and the chief
executive officer and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (an Executive Director and

the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) is an executive director.

Mr. Yang has been appointed as director and general manager of Shenyang
Tairong Property Development Company Limited* (&[5 2248 E HhE 7
B A E]) since September 2010. He held similar positions in other

companies for more than 20 years.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in industrial automation from the
Shenyang Mechanical Engineering University* (B H#H T2 K2 in
1994 and obtained a master degree in civil and commercial laws from the

Shenyang Normal University in 2001.

Mr. Huang Yilin, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 23 January 2015 and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer on 16 August 2017. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was
re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director of the

Company with effect from | August 2018.

Mr. Huang graduated from The Institute of Finance and Economics of Radio
and Television* (BRI AEZERT) in 1992 and is engaged in management
related works since graduation. During the past years, Mr. Huang was the
general manager of Shantou Sanye Plastic Company Limited* (IIZET =
HBEBR/AR]), Shenzhen China Investment Company Limited* (R3]
B & BBR A F]), Shenzhen Rihuisheng Group Company Limited* (%
YT B EEER S B AR A F]) and Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Company
Limited* (OFIITIBENIREBR A T), and has extensive theoretical

knowledge and practical experience in corporate modern management.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ba Junyu, aged 66, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.
He was appointed as the chairman of Remuneration Committee of the

Company on | August 2018.

Mr. Ba has been an external supervisor of Shengjing Bank (Stock Code:
2066) since February 2018. He was an independent non-executive director
of that bank from June 2010 to February 2018. Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company) is a non-executive director
of that bank from July 2013 to March 2021. Mr. Ba has been a professor
at Shenyang Ligong University* (&[532 T K2 since September 2001,
and served as principal, professor and researcher of the social economy
research institute of Shenyang Ligong University from September 200 |
to May 2009. He serves as a professor at the School of Law and Ideology
of Shenyang Ligong University since May 2009. Prior to that, he served as
an associate professor and the head of the economic research institute at
Shenyang University from April 1996 to August 2003. From August 1985
to April 1996, he served as a vice dean, deputy principal and associate
professor of the market economy research institute at Shenyang Institute
of Finance and Economics. He used to work at the teaching and research
office at Shenyang Accounting School* (&5 T I & 24R) as deputy
director, director and lecturer from August 1982 to August 1985.

Mr. Ba graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(formerly known as Liaoning Institute of Finance and Economics* (3 & 8
#EBT)) (Liaoning, PRC) in July 1982, majoring in commercial enterprise
management. He has been a researcher as accredited by the Personnel

Office of Liaoning Province since August 2008.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Zhu Xueyi, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee on |3 September 2018.

Currently, Mr. Zhu is a professor and the head of the Research Institute
of Resource Economics and Financial Accounting at Nantong Institute of
Technology and a guest professor at the University of Jinan. After working
in journalism from 1974 to 1976, Mr. Zhu embarked on his education
career at the School of Management at China University of Mining and
Technology. Mr. Zhu was gradually promoted to the position of vice dean
of the School of Management at China University of Mining and Technology
from 1999 to 2007. In 2007, he became the head of the Research Institute

of Finance and Accounting at China University of Mining and Technology.

Mr. Zhu obtained an accountancy degree at Jiangsu University of Finance
and Economics in 1983 and obtained a master’s degree at Renmin

University of China in 1992.

Mr. Zhu has been an independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company,
Jiangsu Wuyang Parking Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (TERFFIEEHES
FERMH AR AT (Stock Code: 300420) and the chief financial expert
of Huai Hai Holding Group* (ESIZEREE) since 2017. He was an
independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company, Saimo Electric Co,,
Ltd. (BEBERKHBR AT (Stock Code: 300466) from 2011 to 2016

Mr. Zhu has been a vice chairman of Xuzhou Auditing Society* (%R &

T2 ) and a vice chairman of Xuzhou City Accountant Association* (&

MR ETRIHE) since 2000

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Zhu has published more than 500 articles on accounting. He was
appointed by various units above provincial level, such as Jiangsu Province
Social Science Fund, Ministry of Education, Ministry of Finance to host
nearly 30 significant national projects including national natural science
fund and national social science fund. In recognition of his contribution,
provincial departments awarded him with nearly 30 prizes, e.g. Science
Advancement Prize, Philosophy Society Achievement Award, Excellent
Teaching Achievement Award, etc. He was also awarded as a national
excellent teacher in 1989 and the "“Excellent Accounting Worker” in Jiangsu

Province in 2006.

Mr. Wong Chung Man, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on
24 July 2018.

Mr. Wong worked as a marketing manager in Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited during the period between 1986 and 1990 and as a
general manager of Anju Jewelry Ltd. between 1990 and 1992. Mr. Wong
was the director and president of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (China) Ltd.
during the period between 1992 and 2001 and was the director of Fullnew
International Ltd. during the period between 2001 to 2008. Thereafter, Mr.
Wong worked as the general manager of Enzo Jewelry Holdings Limited
from 2008 to 2009 and then as a consultant at Shenyang Success Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd.* (&[5 TN FEHERZE AR A F]) between
2009 and 2017.

Mr. Wong graduated from Waseda University of Tokyo, Japan in 1985,

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance with an aim to protect the interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix |4 (the "Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). During the Year, the Company
complied with all applicable provisions of the Code except for the

deviations as stated below:

Code Provision A.1.8

Under Code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action which may be taken against the
Directors. The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by
the Company has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet
reached an agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance
premium of new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal
action which may be taken against the Directors has not been in place since
21 May 2018. The Company liaised with various insurance companies and
brokers during the year and will continue to liaise with them to arrange

appropriate insurance cover for the Directors and officers.

Code Provision A.2.7

Under Code provision A.2.7, the chairman should at least annually hold
a meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other directors. Due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and travelling restriction, the chairman of the Board was not able to hold
such meeting face-to-face with the Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Company may try to arrange video conference or other equipments
for such meetings in the future in order to provide more flexibility for all

Directors.

10 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A 7]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERME

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should
give the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit of
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. They should also attend
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. Due to outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and
travelling restriction, two Non-executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 25 August 2020, and the special general meeting
of the Company held on |5 September 2020. The Company may try to
arrange video conference or other equipments for general meetings in the

future in order to provide more flexibility for all Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company

and oversees the Group's business strategic decisions and performances.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three Executive
Directors, Mr. Li Yuguo, Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Ms. Guo Yumei; two
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Yang Xiaogiang and Mr. Huang Yilin; and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Ba Junyu, Mr. Zhu Xueyi
and Mr. Wong Chung Man. Mr. Li Yuguo is the chairman of the Board and

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James is the chief executive officer of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are persons
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and
appropriate expertise. They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company and the Company considers these directors to be

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SEEARRE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board so as to enhance the quality of its performance and as
an essential element in maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Group. All appointment of the Board members will
be based on merits against objective criteria and with due regards for
benefits and balance of diversity on the Board. The Board diversity will
be considered in terms of, among other things, gender, age, professional
experience, qualifications and educational and cultural background, and any
other factors that the Nomination Committee may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time towards complementing and extending the

overall skills, know-how and experiences of the entire Board.

Number of Directors
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Meetings

Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and general

meetings of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out

below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Yuguo
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

Ms. Guo Yumei

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang
Mr. Huang Yilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ba Junyu

Mr. Zhu Xueyi

Mr. Wong Chung Man

HTES

FERE%E
ARBEE
REiEat

FUTES
Bkt
BERMAE

BUFHTES
BEFELE
ABERE
B XEE

=

BEERHE_TZ

BEINWT

—F=A=+—H1%F
EEEeSHENARNARERS HFELEF

Meetings attended/Held
HERY, BTEERY

Annual
General
Meeting

RRBFAE

I/
11
0/

071
0/

071
0/
071

Special
General

Meeting
BRRERAE

0/
171
0/

071
0/

071
0/
071
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Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board will also meet on
other occasions when a decision at the board level on a particular matter
is required. The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision and
minutes of committee meetings (if any) prior to every board meeting.
The Board has reserved its power for decision or consideration on those
matters relating to corporate strategy, annual and interim results, directors’
appointment, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before public disclosure, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,

and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings pursuant to the Bye-laws of

the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such
meeting; and any director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with
the latest developments in the legal and regulatory frameworks, and the
business and market changes to facilitate the performance and discharge of

their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective

training records pursuant to the Code.

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of

attending seminars or self-reading as set out below:

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Li Yuguo FEEEE
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James AR B/EAE
Ms. Guo Yumei RE/LL
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang B/REE
Mr. Huang Yilin BRMEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYEHTES
Mr. Ba Junyu B&FELE
Mr. Zhu Xueyi RERLAE
Mr. Wong Chung Man B

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™) as set out in Appendix
|0 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 3| March
2021,

EEZHESRERE
ARTHESBES T REH A0 REE

BEROEMERAREGRMISES - U
EREETHEEEL

RIEZTH - 2REBFHARAQBRHER
FEB 2B -

FAR - BERXZCER UATREFEBHFER
BE

HEXETHEM2MEEFREEERRE
& :
Attending seminars Self-reading
HETHE BiTBE
v/ v/
v/ 4
v/ v/
v/ 4
v v/
v/ 4
v/ v/
v/ 4

S S, 4R M o
X 212 ESTH

ART RN _ETAR R 8% 0P8 2 £ 3%
TABERETERR G ZRETR([REST
All) - RAXRERFHAREHE - 1A
ERHRABEREBE S =_—F=A=1+—
HIEBEFRED2mETRETAMEHI
RERRE -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Li Yuguo. Its primary duties include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters

relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting during the year ended

31 March 2021. The attendance of each member of the Nomination

Committee at the meeting during the year is set out below:

Committee members

ZEEHE

Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman) FRBELE(EE)
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE

Mr. Zhu Xueyi REBRSTE

Mr. Wong Chung Man E=MXEE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure
and composition of the Board, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy,
assessed the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors
and made recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of

Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nomination of candidates from
Board members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
The factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for the
position of director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote sufficient
time to discharge his duties as Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and such other
perspectives relevant to the Company's business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board's consideration and

approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Ba Junyu. Its primary duties include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management, reviewing
the remuneration package and recommending salaries, bonuses, including
the incentive awards for the Directors and senior management, assessing
performance of executive Directors, approving the directors’ services
contracts and ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration etc.
The Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting during the year ended

31 March 2021. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration

Committee at the meeting during the year is set out below:

Committee members

ZEEHE

Mr. Ba Junyu (Chairman) BEFREEE)
Ms. Guo Yumei REB/RE

Mr. Zhu Xueyi RBREE

Mr. Wong Chung Man | EAE

RBEHER
REAZEQUBFETINERBREA
MHRZZEEEE - REZEENARS
WIHRBEEEKEBRABZIKEA - RBEE
ERFHESRBUBREAR - BIER2EZRA
ZER(EFEE)EE BARRER Kb
EBREBENER  BREXERE - Bk
MBLER BERARSHNKHEETES
EREMBENAREMESRE ME A K
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MeHEMAR - RRZBSAFHERBER
HEFSEELILE -

yMEES
ARBIZHMNEZE SR ERE =B IEH
TEER—EBRTES  BRHEERTEL
EEXE FHEEecETERAERENE
BARREZEREREEABHMZBER R
REMNEESHFLEBER  RTEERT
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MERR  BRESERGAO MEFRMEE
FRETABEAZRETERTHWMNE -
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and
reviewed the terms of the appointment letters of the Directors with
reference to various factors including, inter alia, salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of the
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the remuneration

policy of the Directors are set out on page 53.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
(3) Independent Non-executive Directors and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhu Xueyi. Its primary duties are to review and oversee the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control system of the
Group and its effectiveness, and review and monitor the integrity of
financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual report and

interim report.
The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31

March 202 1. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at

the meetings during the year is set out below:

Committee members

ZEEME

Mr. Zhu Xueyi (Chairman) KREREE(EE)
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE

Mr. Wong Chung Man BN EE
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During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
including the Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 3|
March 2020 and the unaudited financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2020 respectively. In June 2021, the Audit Committee
reviewed the Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 3|

March 2021 prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance matters of the
Company. The duties of the Board include, inter alia, (i) to develop,
review and implement the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance; (ii) to review, monitor and implement the policies
and practices of the Company in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements; (iii) to develop, review, monitor and implement the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and employees; and (iv) to review and
implement the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 3| March 2021, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditors, Messrs. Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited, is set out

as follows:

Services rendered

FriR AR %5
Audit services RER
Non-Audit services (Note) IR BBRTE (A 2E)

Note:  The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors’ independence was not affected

by the provision of those non-audit services during the year ended 3| March 2021.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's risk management
and internal control systems. To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
the Group emphasizes the importance of a sound risk management and
internal control systems which are also indispensable for mitigating the
Group's risk exposures. The Group'’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of

failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The risk management and internal control system are reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board, but in any event no less than once per year, in
order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance in
relation to protection of material assets and identification of business risks.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information furnished to it and on
its own observations, for the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date
of this report, the risk management and internal controls of the Group are

satisfactory, effective and adequate.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with its business activities and has implemented a
practical and effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system and
periodic review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and

the Board.
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During the year under review, the Board has engaged an external
professional advisor to conduct the annual review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31| March
2021. The review has covered financial, operational and compliance control
and some recommendations were provided in the internal control review
report. All recommendations are properly followed up by the Group.
Therefore, the Board considered that the risk management and internal

control systems are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING
During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Wu Ho Wai has received over
fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional trainings to refresh his skills and

knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company and carrying the right of voting at general meetings can send a
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to request for

a special general meeting (“SGM").

The written requisition should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 2601, 26/F., West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written requisition must state
the proposed resolution(s), accompanied by a statement of the matters
referred in the proposed resolution(s) and signed by the shareholders

concerned.

The identities and eligibility of the requisitionist(s) will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisitionist(s) is/are eligible to give such requisition, the Company will
then proceed to convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the
deposit of the requisition. The actual SGM shall be held within two (2)

months after the deposit of the written requisition.
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Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholders who wish to make a proposal at shareholders’ meeting shall
request for the convening of a SGM in accordance with the procedure

under the paragraph headed “Convening a Special General Meeting”.

Procedures for Nomination of Directors for Election

Shareholders who wish to nominate a person to stand for election as a
director at general meetings shall lodge the following documents at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during which such
documents are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that the period
for lodgment of such notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such

general meeting:

0] notice in writing signed by the shareholder of his intention to

propose such person for election (“Nominated Candidate”);

(i) notice in writing signed by the Nominated Candidate to be

proposed of his willingness to be elected; and

(iii) the biographical details of the Nominated Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for publication by the
Company.
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AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no significant changes to

the Company'’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through
the Company's annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars as well as the general meetings. The general meetings allow

directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website is
maintained to disseminate announcements and other relevant financial and

non-financial information of the Company electronically on a timely basis.

ENQUIRIES TO THE COMPANY OR THE BOARD

We always welcome shareholders’ view and input. Shareholders and other
stakeholders may at any time address their concerns to the Company

Secretary by mail, facsimile or email. The contact details are as follows:

Address: Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(852) 3102 0899

Email: info@asiaresources899.com.hk

Facsimile no.:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EERRAEEEENRR N

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | hereby
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report and audited

consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 3| March 2021 (the “Year”), the revenue of the Group
was approximately HK$32,920,000 (2020: HK$201,510,000). The decrease
in revenue was mainly due to (i) over 72% of total saleable area of the
completed properties in Dalian, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
had been handed over to buyers for which the corresponding revenue
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020 and the remaining
saleable area was significantly reduced during the Year; and (ii) the sales
and handover of the remaining completed properties held for sale were

slowed down during the Year due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.

Cost of Sales
For the Year, cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$ 16,471,000
(2020: HK$288,754,000). The decrease was in line with the decrease in

revenue.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EERRAEEEENRR N

Gross Profit/Loss

For the Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of approximately
HK$16,449,000. The gross profit was mainly attributable to the rental
income earned after the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Chi
Sheng Trading Company Limited (details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 May 2020), which was a wholly-
owned subsidiary in Zhejiang, the PRC. Rental income was earning from
the leasing of certain land use rights, a two-storey industrial building and

machinery currently owned by the subsidiary in Zhejiang.

For the year ended 3| March 2020, the Group recorded a gross loss of
approximately HK$87,244,000. The gross loss was mainly attributable to
the loss on sales of properties in Dalian due to higher development costs
arising from the delay in the property development, and downturn of the

property market in Dalian which resulting in a drop in selling prices.

Other Gains

For the Year, the Group recorded other gains of approximately
HK$107,508,000 (2020: HK$27,950,000). The increase was mainly due to
the interest income receivable by the Group relating to the termination
of acquisition of properties located in Shenyang, the PRC (the "“Shenyang
Properties”) (details of which were disclosed in the circular of the
Company dated 24 August 2020) and the currency exchange gains on
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Renminbi resulting from the

appreciation of Renminbi.

Other Losses

For the Year, the Group recorded other losses of approximately
HK$41,000 (2020: HK$60,825,000). For the year ended 31 March
2020, other losses were mainly due to the currency exchange losses on
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in Renminbi resulting from the

depreciation of Renminbi.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of agency
fee and promotion fee, which were approximately HK$2,64 1,000 (2020:
HK$9,653,000). The decrease was mainly attributable to the slowdown of
sales of properties in Dalian due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic.
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Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consisted of directors’ emoluments,
other staff costs and benefits, depreciation, legal and professional fees and
other general office expenses, which were approximately HK$25,965,000
for the Year (2020: HK$35,267,000). The decrease was mainly due to the

drop in staff costs as a result of the decrease in the number of staff.

Share of Results of Associates
For the Year, the share of losses of associates was approximately
HK$ 10,195,000 (2020: HK$9,572,000). The increase in losses was due to

the drop in profit of the associate in Guangxi for the Year.

Profit/Loss attributable to Owners of the Company

For the Year, the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
Company, which amounted to approximately HK$91,264,000 (2020: loss
of approximately HK$338,784,000). The change from loss for the year
ended 3| March in 2020 to profit for the Year was mainly attributable to:

(i) the change from gross loss to gross profit on sales of properties

located in Dalian;

(i) the interest income receivable by the Group relating to the

termination of acquisition of the Shenyang Properties;

(iii) the currency exchange gains on the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in Renminbi resulting from the appreciation of Renminbi
in the Year, in contrast with the currency exchange losses on the
corresponding monetary assets and liabilities resulting from the

depreciation of Renminbi in the previous year;

(iv) the absence of significant impairment losses on assets and the reversal
of impairment loss on deposits paid resulting from the increase in fair
value of Yantian Properties in the Year, in contrast with the significant
impairment losses on certain assets due to the decrease in their fair

values in the previous year; and

(v) the gain from change in fair value of investment properties in

Zhejiang.
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BUSINESS REVIEW 32 5] A

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic had RZIE-TEY  COVID-19EIFEEEH K
brought unprecedented challenges on the business of the Group. The EBMERTSRAABAE - HEHS K
lockdown order and travel restriction had significantly affected the Group's RER IS AR EFBN S EERBERATE o

operation. As a result, it slowed down the development and growth of our M BPIEENEE RIS REERAE -
businesses.

Water Business TKEH

The Group recorded a loss from water business segment of approximately RARFE  REBBKEBKEDEHRS
HK$5,275,000 for the Year (2020: HK$57,739,000). For the year ended #5275000 8 T2 BHE(ZFEZFF :
31 March 2020, the loss from water business was mainly attributable to an 577390008 7L) c HEZZE T F = A
impairment loss on intangible assets of approximately HK$46,932,000. For =T —HIEFE KEBEBEIZHRER
the Year, there was no impairment provision on the intangible assets. In B EREE184946,932,0008 7T c RAFE -
addition, the decrease in advertising expenses and staff costs reduced the BEEEWEREMBERE - LN BER

loss from water business for the Year. T REB TR DRIET AFEKELR
[E518 -
Water Production and Sales KEERIEE

The Group holds 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding AREFBZREEEEEKTERERER AR ([ R
Dong Group Company Limited (“Spring Water Ding Dong") which has KT DN(EREREE —RBE2ENB AR -
a wholly-owned subsidiary in Guangxi, Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong BERRKITKREGERER AT ([ EARKAT
Beverages Company Limited* (“Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong"). 18 ])) 2 20% M A HEws o BEPERIKAT L5 H B
Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong possesses a water procurement permit IKEBEEEENEEMEK  WIEREAEE -
for production and sales of bottled water and is currently in operation in

Guangxi.

During the Year, the Group shared losses of associates of approximately RAEE  AEBHEBEATDNEELD
HK$10,195,000 (2020: HK$9,572,000), which were mainly caused by the 10,195,000/ Tt (ZZFE —ZF F : 9,572,000/
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of water ) FEHRYE - BE RREITE REUK

procurement permit. B -
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Water Mining

The Group holds 67% equity interests in Good Union (China) Limited
which has a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hunan, which possesses a water
mining licence for exploitation of mineral water in Hunan. Due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic since January 2020, the construction
works of the factory has been suspended and delayed. The construction
works were resumed in the first half of 2021 and is expected to be
completed in mid-2022. The production is expected to commence in the
second half of 2022.

The Group reviewed the fair value of the water mining licence as at 31
March 2021 with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
qualified valuer and there was no impairment provision on the water mining
licence for the Year (2020: Provision for impairment loss of approximately
HK$46,932,000). Details of the valuation method and key assumptions
and the impairment assessment are set out in notes 3 and 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Under the sale and purchase agreement dated 23 May 2017, the vendor,
who is currently the minority shareholder of Good Union (China) Limited,
has committed a production volume guarantee on the Hunan project for
each of the calendar year from 2019 to 2028. For details, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 23 May 2017. However, the
production volume guarantees for each of the years 2019 and 2020 were
not satisfied due to the delay in construction works and the outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic. The Group has engaged a law firm to issue demand

letters to the vendor for compensation and to negotiate with the vendor.
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Property Development and Property Investment Business

The Group recorded a profit from property development and investment
segment of approximately HK$124,476,000 for the Year (2020: loss of

approximately HK$272,534,000). The change from loss to profit was

attributable to:

@

(i

(i

(iv)

V)

the change from gross loss to gross profit on sales of properties

located in Dalian;

the interest income receivable by the Group relating to the

termination of acquisition of the Shenyang Properties;

the currency exchange gains on the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in Renminbi resulting from the appreciation of Renminbi
in the Year, in contrast with the currency exchange losses on the
corresponding monetary assets and liabilities resulting from the

depreciation of Renminbi in the previous year;

the absence of significant impairment losses on assets and the reversal
of impairment loss on deposits paid resulting from the increase in fair
value of Yantian Properties in the Year, in contrast with the significant
impairment losses on certain assets due to the decrease in their fair

values in the previous year; and

the gain from change in fair value of investment properties in

Zhejiang.
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Property Development

Dalian Properties

The indirect wholly-owned subsidiary in Dalian, the PRC, Dalian Chuanghe
Landmark Co Ltd.* (KEBIMEH AR AF]) (“Dalian Chuanghe”),
engages in the development of urban land for residential usage in Dalian
and plans to develop 55 buildings with 21 buildings in the first phase
("Phase I'") and 34 buildings in the second phase (“Phase II") at Beibu
District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC.

Phase I, named “Xin Tian Jia Yuan", was completed in March 2019.
There are 21| buildings established in Phase | with total saleable area of
approximately 42,540 square metres including 4 eight-storey apartments
(NEE), 9 garden villas (/%) and 8 garden houses (Bt BERIEE). Dalian
Chuanghe commenced to hand over the properties to buyers in April
2019. For the Year, approximately 2,420 square metres of properties
were handed over and revenue of approximately HK$19,399,000 (2020:
HK$201,242,000) was recorded. Up to 31 March 2021, an aggregate of
approximately 78% of the total saleable area of Phase | have been handed
over to the buyers. As at 31 March 2021, Dalian Chuanghe had sale
contracts with contract amount of approximately RMB32,791,000 with
gross saleable areas of around 4,600 square metres which would be handed

over to buyers in the near future.

For Phase Il, there are 34 buildings with aggregate saleable area of
approximately 69,000 square metres. The development of Phase Il is in
preliminary stage. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the
slowdown of economic growth in the PRC, the development of Phase Il will
be re-scheduled subject to the sales condition of Phase | and the property

market in Dalian.

*  For identification purpose only

30 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A 7]

WEZE

KEYFE
RPEREZBE2ENE AR XERM
EMARAR(TRELIMDRREREFE
WA ETERS - YitdRPRRES
MRS AEIL I EFAESSERETF - HRE
—H(T—H ) R21EEF - FH(=H#])
BI4EETF -

—H[OAESIER-E-NAF=ABI-
—HIRB2EEF - LR EEEL AE42540
FRAK BREOENEE - NLEFER/\E
BEERIEE - KIERIMN T —hEMAHA
MERRNYE - RAEE - 892,420F 7K
B ) 5 B 58 K R A I 8% 15 49 19,399,000 7 7T
(ZZ =T : 2012420008 7C) WA - &
E-T-—FZA=+—H —HHNEARE
EEEGHNTSUERNLER - RZT = —
F=ZRA=+—8 REBNMBEHNSTEHA
R#32,791,000tHHE S L) » BA] EEEL
4,600 F 75K BN BEIMNHEER -

Z“HIHBMEETF - BRI EEEL R69,000
EFHK e CHZHABEERVIZRE - BN
COVID-19% BB B RP BB RME =
HOAZBET —HNEEBIERNERH
EmSERmERTE -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EESHAEERENWR O

The Group reviewed the market value of the completed properties held
for sale and properties under development as at 31 March 2021 with
reference to a valuation report issued by an independent qualified valuer
using market approach and residual method respectively in the assessment
of the valuation. For the Year, a reversal of impairment losses on completed
properties held for sale of approximately HK$856,000 (2020: Provision for
impairment loss of approximately HK$25,348,000) was made. There was
no impairment provision on properties under development for the Year

(2020: Provision for impairment loss of approximately HK$28,033,000).

Property Investment

Yantian Properties

(A) The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 24 June 2014, a
supplemental agreement on |5 April 2015, the second supplemental
agreement on 12 July 2016, the third supplemental agreement on
7 May 2017 and the fourth supplemental agreement on 3 May
2018 to purchase the property at a consideration of approximately
RMB 100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$126,000,000).

The property comprises 46 units of Jinma Creative Industry Park
(formerly known as “Kingma Information Logistic Park’) which is
situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road and Shenyan Road Intersect, Inner
Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded Area, Yantian District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC* (/BRI B8 M [ B8 A AR AR (R W) 7 (B ) = S B% B R B8
B AZME R — SR HEYS) (“Jinma Creative Industry Park”) with a total
gross floor area of approximately 8,699 square metres.

As at 3| March 2021, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB90,000,000 in accordance with the payment
terms stated in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB 10,000,000 shall
be paid within 30 days from the date on which the relevant building
ownership certificates are issued in favour of the purchaser which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Jinma Industry
Park Purchaser”). The vendor shall register the title of the property
under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser on or before 31

December 2018 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

*  For identification purpose only
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The Group entered into the second acquisition agreement on
I5 May 2015, a supplemental agreement on 12 July 2016, the second
supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017 and the third supplemental
agreement on 3 May 2018 to purchase additional property at a
consideration of approximately RMB65,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$81,400,000). The property comprises 30 units
of Jinma Creative Industry Park with a total gross floor area of

approximately 5,400 square metres.

As at 3| March 2021, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB60,000,000 in accordance with the payment
terms stated in the sale and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB5, 100,000 shall be
paid within 30 days from the date on which the property is registered
under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The vendor shall
register the title of the property under the name of the Jinma Industry
Park Purchaser on or before 31 December 2018 (or such other date

as may be mutually agreed).

The Group entered into the third acquisition agreement on
10 November 2015, a supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017
and the second supplemental agreement on 3 May 2018 to
purchase additional property at a consideration of approximately
RMB101,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$122,000,000). The
property acquired, being a single-storey reinforced concrete building
designated for office and storage uses located at Block 2 of Jinma
Creative Industry Park with a total gross floor area of approximately

4,957 square metres.

As at 3| March 2021, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB100,000,000 in accordance with the terms of
payment stated in the sale and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB 1,600,000 shall be
paid within 30 days from the date on which the property is registered
under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The vendor shall
register the title of the property under the name of the Jinma Industry
Park Purchaser on or before 31 December 2018 (or such other date

as may be mutually agreed).
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For Yantian Properties (A), (B) and (C) as described above, as at the date
of this report, the vendor has still not registered the titles of the properties
under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The approval
from the PRC government authority for issuing the building ownership
certificates remained pending. In April 2021, the Company received the
second letter from the vendor requesting for an extension of the deadline
to 31 December 2021 for handling the matter of building ownership
certificates. The Company has engaged a PRC law firm to negotiate with
the vendor to resolve this matter. The management will continue to follow
up and take appropriate actions.

The Group reviewed the market value of Yantian Properties (A), (B) and
(C) as at 31 March 2021 with reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent qualified valuer using market approach in the assessment of
the valuation. A reversal of impairment loss on deposits paid for Yantian
Properties of approximately HK$5,454,000 (2020: Provision for impairment
loss was approximately HK$5,358,000) was made for the Year. Details of
the impairment assessment are set out in notes 3 and 25(i).

Beijing Properties

The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 28 February 2017
to purchase (a) office premises with a gross floor area of 8,335 square
metres and (b) underground car park with a gross floor area of 3,100
square metres located in Phrase Il of Beijing Convention and Exhibition
International Port (Exhibition Centre Ancillary Facilities) Project* (3t A&
REIRARERERMIEB % =) for a consideration of approximately
RMB220,000,000 (subject to adjustment).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group paid the consideration of
RMB200,000,000 in accordance with the payment terms stated in the sale
and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the consideration of
approximately RMB20,000,000 shall be paid upon the execution of the pre-
sale agreement between the vendor and the purchaser, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and the building ownership certificate
having been obtained by the purchaser. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic, the construction works were temporarily suspended and the
progress was delayed. In April 2021, the Company received the second
letter from the vendor explaining the reasons of delay in construction
works and requesting for an extension of handover of the properties.
Currently, the vendor has resumed the construction works and the
construction is expected to be completed on or before 30 June 2022. The
management will continue to follow up and take appropriate actions.

The Group reviewed the market value of Beijing Properties as at 31
March 2021 with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
qualified valuer using market approach in assessment of the valuation. An
impairment loss on deposits paid for Beijing Properties of approximately
HK$ 1,141,000 (2020: HK$19,057,000) was provided for the Year.

*  For identification purpose only
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Zhejiang Properties

During the Year, the Group acquired 100% equity interest in Chi Sheng
Trading Company Limited which has a wholly-owned subsidiary in Zhejiang,
the PRC. The subsidiary holds the land use rights in respect of an industrial
land parcel with site area of approximately 31,950 square metres and a
two-storey industrial building with a total gross floor area of approximately
45,330 square metres together with another land parcel with a total site
area of approximately 74,960 square metres located in Chen Village,
Shanghua Street, Lanxi City, Jinhua, Zhejiang Province, the PRC. The
acquisition has been completed on 24 June 2020.

The industrial lands and building are currently leased to tenants for
rental income. The Group recorded rental income of approximately
HK$ 13,520,000 for the Year (2020: Nil).

The Group reviewed the market value of Zhejiang Properties as at
31 March 2021 with reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent qualified valuer using market approach in the assessment
of the valuation. Increment in fair value of Zhejiang Properties of
approximately HK$2,282,000 (2020: Nil) was recognised for the Year.

Response to outbreak of COVID-19 PANDEMIC

During the Year, COVID-19 pandemic spread widely in the PRC and
worldwide. Facing the ongoing situation of the COVID-19 pandemic
outbreak, the Group has, in a timely manner, put in place numerous
precautionary measures and procured essential protective supplies to
ensure the health and safety of all its employees in different regions. At the
same time, during this critical period, the Group has proactively taken steps
to ensure stable operations.

The Group has been coordinating with various parties from time to time
and took swift actions whenever necessary. It actively discussed with the
vendors and customers on the effect of delay in the delivery due to the
travel restrictions and movement controls imposed by the PRC government
authorities. The Group has also implemented various flexible working
arrangements for its staff. The Group has used, and will continue to use, its
best endeavors to mitigate the adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on the Group.

The Group will closely monitor the development of COVID-19 pandemic
and ensure the safety of employees and stable operations. As and when
appropriate, the Group will adjust its measures and plans for pandemic
prevention, operations and business development accordingly. The Group will
make timely disclosure on any significant matters which may arise in the future.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. As a responsible corporation,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and
employment in all material respects. The Group has also adopted effective
measures to achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste

reduction.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the Year, there was no incident of material non-compliance with

any relevant laws and regulations for the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

During the Year, there were no material dispute between the Group and
its key stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers, banks,
regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key

stakeholders.

PROSPECTS
Although the Group has faced challenge from COVID-19 pandemic during

the Year, the Directors are optimistic about the economic development
of the PRC in the long run and the demands for water products and
properties in the PRC will remain strong and sustainable. The Group will
continue to strengthen its competitive strength in its core business, i.e.
water business, property development and property investment business
and look for appropriate business and investment opportunities in these
areas. The management also remains open for other business opportunities

whenever the same arise.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the Year
(2020: Nil).

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP
Placing of Shares on 3 August 2018

The net proceeds (net of all relevant costs and expenses) from placing
of shares under specific mandate on 3 August 2018 were approximately
HK$316,500,000. Details of the placing of shares were set out in the
announcements of the Company dated |7 April 2018 and 3 August 2018
respectively and the circular of the Company dated 5 June 2018.

Up to 31 March 2021, the Group had utilised the net proceeds as follows:

BRE
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up to as at
Intended use of Original allocation of ~ Actual use of Actual allocation of 31 March 31 March
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BE R-B--F
~2--% =ZA=t-A
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FEREFR RERE FERERECREIE FMENERECRERAR FEREFR ERD B EfEA LEBE
% of net % of net
HK$’million proceeds HK$’million proceeds HK$’million HK$’million
FESEFR FEREFE
BEAR BOL BEER Bak BEAT BEER
Capital expenditure on the 56.0 |7.7% Capital expenditure on the 56.0 17.7% 17 483
production facilities of production facilities of
Hunan Xintian Hunan Xintian
HEMAEEREZ HEMEAEREL
UG BARX
Potential acquisition of 2130 67.3% Acquisition of Shenyang 2130 67.3% 2130 -
business or companies Properties
BREXBRATYWE RERENE
Working capital of the Group 475 15.0% Working capital of the Group 475 15.0% 475 =
rREEERS rEE2EES
3165 100.0% 3165 100.0% 2682 483
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With a view to putting the Company's resources to a better use, the
Board had therefore temporarily re-allocated the aforesaid unutilised net
proceeds for the use of acquisition of Shenyang Properties in previous
years. Referring to the announcements dated 24 April 2019, | November
2019 and 7 July 2020 respectively and the circulars dated 6 February 2020
and 24 August 2020 respectively, the acquisition of the Shenyang Property
had been terminated and the Group entered into supplemental agreements
with Mr. Li Yuguo, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
Director of the Company to recover the outstanding sum in relation to the
termination of the acquisition of the Shenyang Property on or before 2 July
2021. The Directors are still assessing the most appropriate time to utilize
the said net proceeds. The Board will deploy the unutilised net proceeds
of approximately HK$48.3 million back to the capital expenditure on
production facilities of Hunan Xintian as and when appropriate after taking

into account the market environment at the material time.

The unutilised net proceeds for the use of the capital expenditure on the
production facilities of Hunan Xintian is expected to be used between
August 2021 and mid-2022.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, total equity attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$1,974,578,000 (2020: HK$1,811,528,000). The
increase arose from the profit attributable to owners of the Company.
There were no other material change in the capital structure of the Group

during the Year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 3| March 2021, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,275,578,000 (2020: HK$2,115,424,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of approximately HK$165,214,000 (2020:
HK$190,585,000), non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$102,066,000 (2020: HK$102,189,000) and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$1,974,578,000 (2020: HK$1,811,528,000).
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As at 31 March 2021, the current ratio of the Group was approximately
6.34 (2020: 5.61). Current ratio is calculated based on current assets
divided by current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
0.005 (2020: Nil). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings
divided by total equity.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS
Acquisition

On 26 May 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to acquire 100% of the issued share capital of, and the shareholder’s loan
advanced to, Chi Sheng Trading Company Limited at a consideration of
RMBI100 million. Its wholly-owned subsidiary, Zhejiang Shangshui Jieyun
Food Co., Ltd* (/I L/KFEERMAMR A A, holds, inter alia, the land
use rights in respect of an industrial land parcel and a two-storey industrial
building together with another land parcel located at Chen Village,
Shanghua Street, Lanxi City, Jinhua, Zhejiang Province, the PRC* (7 B4
TESERET EZEABILA), which are currently leased to tenants for
rental income. The acquisition was completed on 24 June 2020. Details of
the acquisition are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 26
May 2020 and 24 June 2020 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other material acquisition during

the Year.

Disposal

The Group has no material disposal during the Year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board is not aware of any significant events that have occurred

subsequent to 31 March 2021, which require disclosure herein.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in the exchange rate of
RMB, arising from relevant Group entities’ monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currency for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management closely
monitors the relevant foreign currency exposure from time to time and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the need

arise.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has a total of 25 (2020: 55) employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC as at 3| March 2021. The total staff cost (staff salaries,
directors’ emoluments and other staff costs) for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$9,482,000 (2020: HK$14,792,000). Remuneration
packages are generally structured with reference to market conditions and
individual performance. Apart from the mandatory provident fund and
statutory retirement benefits, the Group also provides medical benefits
and subsidises employees in various trainings and continuous education

programs.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save and except for those disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not have any capital commitments and

contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Save and except for those disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have other financial guarantee contracts as
at 31 March 2021.
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CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS RrEBEEEHA
The Group did not have any charges over its assets as at 31 March 2021, RZZEZ—F=A=+—H ' AEEVEIK

HEAAEEEE

APPRECIATION EE]

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express AAZHNIKEeREREFTS  YRENMRZE
my gratitude to our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing REF—EUNRNIRHETHE  UREERE
support and extend our appreciation to our management team and staff EIfx M B B FAH RSB T RIEUA RO -

members for their contributions in the year.

By order of the Board RAEEEWm

Li Yuguo FE

Chairman ELH

Hong Kong, 24 June 202 | BE 2 —FA=Z+WMA
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 69 to 70.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall be
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company and the distribution shall

achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of any dividend is subject to the discretion of the
Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the approval
of the shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also
take into account, inter alia, the Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable
return in investment of the investors and the shareholders in order to
provide incentive to them to continue to support the Group in their long-
term development, the financial conditions and business plan of the Group,

and the market sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| March 2021.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2021, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 7,611,690,000 (2020: 7,611,690,000). Details of the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no share option granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled. As at 31 March 2021, there were no

outstanding share options.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group'’s business during the year ended 31 March 2021
are set out in the paragraph headed "BUSINESS REVIEW” under “BOARD
OF DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s has identified the principal risks and uncertainties in the
industries in which the Group operates. The risks and uncertainties may
affect the operations and results of the Group. The principal risks and

uncertainties include but not limited to the followings:

(1) Risks relating to property market in the PRC
The Group's businesses and prospects are largely dependent on
the performance of the property market in the PRC. The property
market in the PRC is affected by a number of factors, including,
inter alia, changes in social, political, economic and legal environment,
as well as changes in the government's financial, economic, monetary,
industrial and environmental conservation policies. The Group is also
susceptible to changes in economic conditions, consumer confidence,
consumption spending, and changes in consumption preferences.
Therefore, the Group continues to implement its strategies to
develop and strengthen penetration and coverage in different regional

markets, thereby reducing its reliance on any specific market.
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(2)

(3)

4)

HRE

Risks relating to water business in the PRC

The Group could be affected by change in consumer preferences,
perception and spending patterns relating to bottled water. The
growth in demand for bottled water products in the PRC has been
driven by, inter alia, the overall growth in the PRC economy and
disposable income of consumers. Any macroeconomic changes in
the PRC that adversely affect consumer consumption for beverage

products could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks relating to business operation

Internal and external business operations of the Group may be
subject to a series of risks, such as increase in production costs
and raw material costs, rise in labour costs, insufficiency of internal
management procedure, non-compliance of key staff members and
default by suppliers, subcontractors and/or customers. In spite of the
measures implemented by the Group for managing such risks, any
unforeseen circumstances may adversely affect the operating results

of the Group.

Financial risks

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management framework focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The details are set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due: or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2021 which comprises contributed
surplus of approximately HK$180,057,000 less accumulated losses of
approximately HK$1,949,728,000. Accordingly, the Company has no
reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note |7 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yuguo

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Ms. Guo Yumei

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang
Mr. Huang Yilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ba Junyu

Mr. Zhu Xueyi

Mr. Wong Chung Man
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In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company’'s Bye-laws, Mr. Li
Yuguo, Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Mr. Wong Chung Man will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election as Directors at the annual general meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual

general meetings as required by the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture
of the Company or associated corporations

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model
Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) were as follows:
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Long positions in shares, underlying shares and RZALXGREG - HEKRGREEEZEZ

debentures of the Company HE
Approximately
percentage of the
Number of issued issued share capital
Name of directors Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
(Note)
BRZ EARLT
BB BRTREZ
EEnA at EERYE TR
(i)
Li Yuguo Beneficial owner 2,268,000,000 29.80%
FEE EHEEBA
Yang Xiaogiang Beneficial owner 354,820,000 4.66%
B/ EEEEA
Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner 104,800,000 1.38%
2R% EHEEBA
Huang Yilin Beneficial owner 70,000 0.00%
BIRM EEEEA
Wong Chung Man Beneficial owner 1,650,000 0.02%
X EGEAA
Note: Brat

The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the Company of ZEEPLIRBEARARNR-_ZE=_—F=A=+—RHZE
7,611,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2021. BITIRAD 427,611,690 000X AR A =T -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 14 January 2002
was terminated on 9 August 201 | and a new share option scheme (the
“2011 Share Option Scheme') was adopted by the Company on 9 August
2011, which shall be valid and effective for |0 years commencing from the

date of adoption.

Reference is also made to the circular of the Company dated 2 August
2018. On 31 August 2018, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company approving,
inter alia, the refreshment of the scheme limit under the 2011 Share

Option Scheme. The refreshed scheme limit was 761,169,000 shares.

2011 Share Option Scheme

The 2011 Share Option Scheme was adopted for the purposes of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision of incentives
to any directors, employees (whether full-time or part-time), consultants,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors to the

Group or affiliates (“Eligible Persons”).
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Under the terms of the 201 | Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant option to the Eligible Persons for a nominal
consideration of HK$ | to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
of no less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of
offer of the option (which must be a business day); (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the option. Options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
must be taken up within 28 business days from the date on which the
offer is made by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$!| (the “Acceptance
Conditions”). Options granted and accepted may be exercised at any time
for 10 years commencing on the date on which an option is accepted in
accordance with the Acceptance Conditions under the 201 | Share Option
Scheme (the "Option Period”). Options granted under the said scheme
will be exercisable in the Option Period notwithstanding that the 201 |
Share Option Scheme does not prescribe any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and does not specify that
the exercise of an option is subject to any performance target.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 201 | Share Option Scheme cannot
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
adoption of the 201 | Share Option Scheme, excluding any options lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the 201 | Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 201 | Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from time to time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible Persons if
the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised options and
shares already issued under all previous options granted, would in the
|2-month period up to and including the date of such further grant enable
that relevant Eligible Person to have shares exceeding 1% of the issued
shares of the Company for the time being unless separate approval by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting is obtained.

During the year ended 3| March 2021, there was no share option granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. As
at 31 March 2021, there was no outstanding share option under the 201 |
Share Option Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in securities
and share options, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021, was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2021, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the following persons (other than any director
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRERER 8%

Li Yuguo Beneficial owner
FEHE BERmBEEA

Note: The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the

Company of 7,611,690,000 Shares as at 3| March 2021.
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company
(Note)

REZERIT GEQARASRITRE
EER#EE ZEBHNBED
(HiE)

2,268,000,000 29.80%
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=+—HZBETRMEE7,611,6900008 %5
ATE -
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest of 5% or more in the issued shares capital of the
Company as at 3| March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no transaction, arrangement or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Termination of the Acquisition of Properties

The purchaser, Asiaciti Investment Limited (“Asiaciti”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into sale and purchase
agreement on |2 October 2017 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
with the vendor, EEREEEHFMR A, to purchase the properties
comprising Floors 7 to 35 of Building T3 situated at 46 Nanjing North
Street, Heping District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, PRC under the
Shenyang Commodity Housing Pre-sale Permit No. 16122 for a total
consideration of RMB625,000,000 (subject to adjustment). The vendor was
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and beneficially
owned by Mr. Li Yuguo (“Mr. Li"), a substantial shareholder, the Chairman

and an Executive Director of the Company.

On 24 April 2019, the vendor and Asiaciti entered into a termination
agreement (the “Termination Agreement”), pursuant to which, (i)
the parties have mutually agreed to terminate the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and no parties shall have claims against each other; and (i) on
or prior to 24 October 2019, the vendor shall refund a total amount of
RMB562,500,000 paid by Asiaciti (the “Refund Amount”) and shall pay a
lump sum of RMB1 1,250,000, being 2% of the Refund Amount, to Asiaciti

as monetary compensation.
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On | November 2019, Asiaciti and Mr. Li entered into a supplemental
agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which, Mr. Li
agreed to take up the responsibilities to repay the Refund Amount and
the related compensation and interests to Asiaciti. Asiaciti agreed to
extend the repayment date to 24 April 2020, with an interest rate of
5.25% per annum. On 22 January 2020 and 27 February 2020, Asiaciti
and Mr. Li agreed to extend and further extend the long stop date for
the Supplemental Agreement to 29 February 2020 and |5 March 2020
respectively.

On 3 July 2020, Asiaciti and Mr. Li entered into a further supplemental
agreement (the “Further Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which,
Mr. Li agreed to repay Asiaciti the outstanding amount in the sum of
RMB584,778,676.47 (the “"Outstanding Sum”) in the following manner: (a)
0% of the Outstanding Sum shall be repaid on or before 2 January 2021;
and (b) 90% of the Outstanding Sum together with the interest to be
accrued on the Outstanding Sum at an interest rate of 10% per annum shall
be repaid on or before 2 July 2021.

The Supplemental Agreement and the Further Supplemental Agreement
constituted connected transactions under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.
The Supplemental Agreement and the Further Supplemental Agreement
were approved by the independent shareholders at the special general
meetings of the Company held on 3 March 2020 and |5 September 2020
respectively.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 12 October 2017, 24 April 2019, | November 2019,
22 January 2020, 27 February 2020, 29 April 2020, 8 May 2020 and 7 July
2020 and the circulars of the Company dated 22 January 2018, 6 February
2020 and 24 August 2020 respectively.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has received from Mr. Li the accrued
interest of approximately RMBI5 million in accordance with the
Supplemental Agreement and partial repayment of the Outstanding Sum of
approximately RMB84 million in accordance with the Further Supplemental
Agreement.

Save as disclosed above, the Board is not aware of any related party
transactions during the year ended 31 March 2021, which constituted a
non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of
the Company under Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in note 38

to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “"CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS" above, certain related party transactions set out in
note 38 to the consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions of the Company but were fully exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had not made any
charitable donations (2020: Nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company
has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet reached an
agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance premium of
new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal action which
may be taken against the Directors of the Company has not been in place
since 21 May 2018. The Company will continue to liaise with the insurer on
the same.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that
will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2021 or subsisted at the end of
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 3| March 2021, the revenue attributable to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 24.1% (2020: 1.0%)
of the Group's total revenue and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 52.7% (2020: 4.7%) of

the Group's total revenue.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the costs incurred in respect of the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 43.6% (2020: 50.5%)
of the Group’s total cost of sales and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 66.3% (2020:
73.4%) of the Group's total cost of sales.

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2021, did a director, a close
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from the
mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group
also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in different

training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are determined, having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out pages 47 to
48.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to

shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 3| March 2021, none of the Directors or any of
their respective close associates has engaged in any business that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict

of interests with the Group.

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company since the
publication of the interim report of the Company for the six months ended
30 September 2020 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(I) of

the Listing Rules is set out below:

0 Mr. Yang Xiaogiang was re-designated from a non-executive director
to an executive director of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited
(Stock code: 2212) with effect from 22 December 2020.

. Mr. Li Yuguo retired as a non-executive director of Shengjing
Bank Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 2066) after the ratification of the new
directors’ eligibility by the Liaoning Bureau of the China Banking and
Insurance Regulatory Commission on 12 March 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 3| March 2021.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the 2021 annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Li Yuguo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 June 202 |
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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STEISEHABRAT

LAU ’ 2IEREZEEE g
LAU & AU YEUNG C.P.A. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 69 to 194, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B 2B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAEEITER

s ETSEH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BN ETNIEEZBERETEE

Impairment assessment of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

BERPURRIFFELEZEERY R ZBEFG

Refer to Notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
SRGa B mAMT2I X2 -

The Group had approximately HK$236,636,000 of properties under
development and HK$89,053,000 of completed properties held for sale
as at 31 March 2021.

R-ZF-Z—F=ZA=+—H  BESEFEEETYFR236636000
AITL R FHEH & 2 BB 5% 4989,053,000/8 7T °

Management assessed the impairment loss of properties under
development and completed properties held for sale based on an
estimation of the net realisable value of the underlying properties. This
involves considerable analyses of estimated costs to completion and
committed contracts and expected future sales price based on prevailing
market conditions such as current market prices of comparable standards
and locations.
BEERBEBME AT ERFEFAERTOERSIELE
ZEERKMEZRERE - EFFRENTE T RAEE D ZfHETK
ARERERTR(PIINAIELBERERUE ZERME) 2 BHR
KEBZIREDH °

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment of impairment loss of properties
under development and completed properties
held for sale included:
BPSREREHERTYERFELEZ
BEERRYMEREBEMEZ LR 2E
ek :

* Assessing the reasonableness of
key assumptions and estimates in
management’s assessment, including:

. AETEBRRERETEPEIHNE
B B

* expected future sales prices which
we compared to contracted sales
prices of the underlying properties or
current market prices of properties of
comparable standards and locations,
where applicable; and

- REHARAREEEMEEDENEL
EERAELRFEERUEMED
EATHE(ER)ETLR : &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) ERETSEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matters matter

HAEEITER BN ETNIEEZBERETEE

Impairment assessment of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (continued)

BREDWERBEHE 2 CERYE ZRERTG ()

If the actual net realisable values of the underlying stock of properties * anticipated costs to completion
fluctuate from those values estimated as a result of changes in market and committed contracts which we
condition, material reversal of or provision for impairment losses on compared to latest approved budgets
properties under development and completed properties held for sale on total construction costs and checked
may result. to supporting documentation.
HEMMEFENERZRFERATREEMEZFATEET - BETRAHEANNBEKAEE
Rl AT RE B U ERTYELFELEZERRMELTERE BN AEERNAREETHER
EIEE B R - REFERAIM -
Due to the significance of properties under development and completed We found that management's assessment
properties held for sale, the estimation uncertainty and management of impairment loss of properties under
judgement, we considered this a key audit matter. development and completed properties held
BRERTMERFELECEEZXNDENEEY - BT TEE for sale is supported by the available evidence.
MR EEEHE - RARRU T ERETFE - BACEREREHBRRTYENSBELE
Z BRI ENREEBEMEN G EIE
AR ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAREETER

EREITSEHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEMNEANAEEZRARESNSR

Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets

FFABFEE 2 BKEZBEN

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

2HERE M IEMERMEEI9 ©

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of the water mining licence
included in intangible assets was approximately HK$327,528,000.
R-_B-—F=ZA=+—R FABFREEZFKEZREHELNR
327,528,000/ 7T °

As detailed in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements,
commercial production of bottled mineral water has not yet commenced
during the year.

R E M ISR 19FTA - MR R KA B R A E N F A R
Lol

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
water mining licence at the end of each reporting period. Management
determined the recoverable amount of the water mining licence based
on the fair value estimated by an independent external valuer who used
multi period excess earnings method, in which key assumptions included
expected price of bottled mineral water, net profit margin and discount
rate.
BEREARE
ﬁﬂﬁ B AR %
KiERKZTBH
Bl #8 e

HEMREBEOKENEARELR - RIZFILINED
BB EREF 2 AFEEPNEIERREER
AER  ARERFAR)  EEBEERKEZAIK

Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment of water mining licence included:

BEOKEAEZREMEZIEF B

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on general conditions
of the bottled mineral water industry;

o REBEMERRKITEZ —BGIRRFE AT
ERAMMBERZE  TERKRMGES
B

* Evaluating the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the
management's expert; and

- MEEEEBER KA BN FEM
ISEAVA RN
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) ERETSIE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matters matter

HAREETER BEMNEANAEEZRARESNSR

Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets (continued)

FFABFEE 2 BFKEZBEN M ()

This area was significant to our audit due to the significance of the * Checking the key assumptions including
balances, and the fact that management’s assessment of the recoverable expected price of bottled mineral water,
amount of the balances involved significant judgement. net profit margin and discount rate against
HRBRBFFTEAREEBF AR RS ES REAHE - industry data.

HHESEEEZER - - BRUTXBEBEERIEZERR(BERER

FOKZ FERRER ~ ANERIEEK) o

We found that the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.

BRPEEEXI2BRERIDAEAK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAEETER

Impairment assessment of interests in associates

REE DTz R ER

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHEA B BREM W -

The Group has 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding
Dong Group Company Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary in
Guangxi, which are presented as interests in associates under the equity
method. The principal activities of the associates are production and
sales of bottled water. As at 31 March 2021, the interests in associates
amounted to approximately HK$190,826,000 and the related share of
losses of the associates was approximately HK$10,195,000.
EEERARERKTRERARARREEAEENEB AR 220%
Pt - WIZEZERRBERFIZEREY - BMERRNTIERER
REERBERRK - R-T-—F=ZA=+—H0 REEQFAZ
HE25 4 7%190,826,00078 7T M ARRE A 5% Bt & A BB A9 410,195,000
AT e

s ETSEH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BN ETNAEEZBERENSE

Our procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment of interests in
associates included:

BAER E IR BIER E R R) 2 R FT{E VIR
BEFffENEFEEE

* Assessing the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the
management’s expert;

. REEREERZRE 8 BB
KB
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAEETER

Impairment assessment of interests in associates (continued)

REEE N8z SRR ERT (&)

The management performed impairment assessment of interests in
associates with the use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the value in use calculation.
The valuation requires the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, use of assumptions and judgements.
%E@FdﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁM”“72$éﬁniEf7/W@n¥1ﬁ THE BB BRI EBE
ERMZEREBEFEEIGHZGAE HEFZEEERBERAE
RAGET - LURE#E ”*ZF&TEE&% 150 PR R R e 1
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s ETSEH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BN ETNAEEZBERENSE

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on the general
conditions of the bottled water industry;
and

o RBREKITRZ —BARRFE A ER
MEESE  TEBRREMEFESS
R

*  Checking the key assumptions including
expected price of bottled water, gross
profit margin and discount rate against
industry data.

- BOXBEBEEHREIZRI(BEMEK
ZTEHER - EMERIFBER) -

We found that the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.

BRPEEEI2BRRIDAERAK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAEEITER

s ETSEH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BB NAEEZBERETSEE

Impairment assessment on deposit paid for the acquisition of Shenyang Properties

RBBEBY R NNES ZBEF

Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHRA B BREM LS -

As at 3| March 2021, the carrying amount of deposit paid for the
acquisition of Shenyang Properties (“Deposit Paid") and related
compensation and interest receivable (“Receivables”) were
approximately HK$566,306,000 and HK$71,888,000 respectively.
R-ZZE-—F=ZA=+—H  BRBESYEINZS([EMZ
) REENRUEEREMNE([RER]) 2 EREEODIOR
566,306,000/ 7T} 71,888,000/ 7T °

As detailed in note 25(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
termination agreement was signed on 24 April 2019 to terminate the
transaction. Mr. Li Yuguo, the substantial shareholder, agreed to repay
the Deposits Paid and Receivables in a supplemental agreement on
| November 2019.

BANAR A B SRR M FE 25 FTaFill - RIEBHRER T — L FWEA
“TMBEET  UARIERS - EZE-NEF T A BRI HE
o TERRFERELRBEES RS REKK -

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
Deposit Paid and Receivables. Assessing the impairment of such assets is a
judgemental area which involved significant management’s judgement and
estimation in forecasting future economic conditions.
EEEAZEENES NEBRFANEMRETR - FHEREEZ
BB N B R B S TR RIR SR A O A th B9 B R B R (R FRORIR
HRAEEARDL ©

Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of Deposit Paid and Receivables
included:
BMERE MRS RERYGRARER 212
e

* Assessing whether the fair value of
securities provided is sufficient to cover the
Deposit Paid and Receivables;

- FHEARHEZEARNAFERTS BN
EHD MRS KKK

* Discussing with management and
evaluating available information about the
status of the substantial shareholder.

- REBRRNENEEIEE MG
AR -

We found that management’s assessment of
recoverability of Deposit Paid and Receivables
is supported by available evidence.
HPEEEEEEREMRE KEUKE AT
WEIRE AT BRI -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

RELED R B AR B B IS IR AR R
EEE

BB BRRUGAMBERREBRL TR
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R ELED R AR S B IS IR AR R
E2EEE)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

R ELED R AR S B IS ¥R AR R
E2EEE)

« HESAMBHmRNERIHSN A
BRAR  BEBEEER  UREEY
BHRrkESTERBRBBERZLFE -

- B BEEERNERIEKIEDINNBE
HERTR  @ENETRE  UEYH
HEMBHRERERER - RMAE &
SEEFNTR  BEBERT - BHAR
B RRAERHAL -

BREMEERN  BRMAEBXEZBEGEB T
FMBABE BHEHLH  BREZER
% BREBRMERET P H5 W AR ZE S 0 E
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE R EN BT 45 S M ISR R A
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL E2EE(E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we WEEZEESBEBNEIEF - BTG
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the L EIFH ARG AVERERNETNRAE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore B EmMEKEEESEE - BIEZEA
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report MERHMELEIR  BRIEEEERTAF
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or AHRABEBEELEE N ERFRNBER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should T MREEEHERMBESHBERESE
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of ERMBAEARBBRBEEN AR - BIF
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest PURENEEREFBRBZEE -

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent HERBIZEMBENEZEEES AR

auditor’s report is Au Yeung Tin Wah. FHRZE o

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited WG ETMEBRERAF
Certified Public Accountants B ETRD

Au Yeung Tin Wah BRE R E

Practising Certificate Number: P02343 EFEHES : P02343

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021 &8 —E-—F"AZ+WEH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

N
g&ﬁ = ,Eiihl

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit/(loss)

Other gains

Other losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Provision for impairment loss on
intangible assets

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on
deposits paid

Provision for impairment loss on properties
under development

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on
completed properties held for sale

Gain from changes in fair value of investment
properties

Provision for impairment loss on inventories

Gain on bargain purchase

Over-provision of land value added tax

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

Htv2mE W@ &

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

WA
HE KA

E8,(E8)

HipWam
H it E518

HE RO IHEFX

ﬂﬁﬁi

DIEBE R R RE
BIVEERERERE

BEffE 2 BERER
m5 (B #)
BRPMEZREBRRRE

BRI BRI
BRBE (BHE)
RANEATERBHAE

Hﬁl¥

ﬁ R ERERE R
L6
THIRERBERE

BB R A

BRBLADEF(BE)

IR

REEHF(FHR)
Htt 2 mE WK - BRBLE
DIEBE R R M2

BEBINEBEEZELEZR

AEZHM2EKER - RBR

2021
—E_—F
Notes HK$’000
Hat TERT
7
16,449
8 107,508
9 (41)
(2,641)
(26,277)
(10,195)
19
16
33
10
Il
14
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2020
TEITF
HK$'000
TR

201,510
(288,754)

(87,244)
27,950
(60,825)
(9,653)
(35,267)
(9,572)
(46,932)
(92,873)
(28,033)

(25,348)

(967)

9,298
(358)

(359,824)
4,904

(354,920)

[31

(63,792)

(63.661)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmkEAEERER

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-——F —ETHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat TERT FABT
Total comprehensive income AEELHINEERE
for the year 162,927 (418,581)
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FEMEE A, (B518)
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETEZ =N 15 (338,784)
Non-controlling interest JEIE R RE (16,136)
(354.920)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  E{R & EIURZS 4258 ¢
Owners of the Company RATHEA A 163,050 (402,080)
Non-controlling interest JEIE AR 2 (123) (16,501)
162,927 (418581)
HK$
BT
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable XA TEEAEEER
to owners of the Company BR(BA)
— Basic and diluted — BEXREE I5 (0.045)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEM 2 Bzt B S MBEHmET 2 —285 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
wRa BRI R

Asat 31 March 202l RZZE-—F=ZF=+—H

2021 2020
—EBE-—F —E-F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat THERT FAET
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment properties KEME 16 132,516 -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 17 33,237 17,890
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18(a) 1,060 2910
Intangible assets EEEE 19 337,681 336,766
Interests in associates NI 20 190,826 201,076
Deposits paid &S 25 532,397 487,084
1,227,717 1,045,726
Current assets REBEE
Properties under development BREPYE 21 236,636 218,330
Completed properties held for sale FHERE 2B 8% 22 89,053 99,265
Inventories Ty 23 = 299
Trade receivables B 5 EIER 24 2,851 234
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - B R
other receivables Hh EUBR X 25 691,853 697,500
Amount due from an associate FEU— KBt E A A 2 I8 20 2,866 2,420
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEBREZ
through profit or loss TRMEE 26 2,866 2,855
Income tax prepaid B ETIEH - 248
Restricted bank deposits ZRRHIRITFER 27(a) 2,702 2,484
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 27(b) 19,034 46,063
1,047,861 1,069,698
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S EMNERR 28 72,995
Other payables and accruals HpENERERLESTE A 29 61,833
Contract liabilities BHEE 52,966
Lease liabilities HERE 18(b) 2,356
Tax payable FEIEETE 435
165,214 190,585
Net current assets REEEZRE 882,647 879,113
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERABAR 2,110,364 1,924,839
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR AR

Asat 31 March 202l R-ZE-—F=A8=+—H

2021 2020
—2=—F —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
logz3 FEx THET
Capital and reserves BEAXRRE
Share capital [N 30 76,117 76,117
Reserves s 34 1,898,461 1,735,411
Total equity attributable to RRAAEEAELERAR
owners of the Company 1,974,578 1,811,528
Non-controlling interest IR RE 102,066 102,189
2,076,644 1,913,717
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEAE 31 10,577
Lease liabilities HEBE 18(b) 545
1,122
2,110,364 1,924,839
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEEAMEREREHRESERN - —&F
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2021 and signed on its behalf by: NA A RERETRY H J;/\—FA:':
KREFGEE
Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
FIELE BRBELE
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated FEM Z s B E G A BmEx 2 — 25

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEEEER

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

At 1 April 2019

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Lapse of share options
At 31 March 2020

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 March 2021

RZZ-hEWA-A

KEERR
FERRbR AN

KEERENELT
BREXR
R-Z-2E=A=1-A

KERREH
FERADZENE

FEERENEEE

R-B=-£=f=1-B

Attributable to owners of the Company

IRAREAEL
Attributable to
Share-based non-
Share Share Capital payment Special  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interest Total
HRHAER FERER
Ba  RMEE  EABR  HxORE  BHBRE EXGR BB At .13 @it
HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
T TR FEL TEL TiEL TiEn Tin Tin Tin Tin
Note 34(a) Note 34(b)
Kt Bt
6117 1,597,179 2025156 15948 92926 (15244 (1478474 2213608 118690 2332298
- - - - - - (338784) (338784) (16,136) (354920)
- - - - - (63.296) - (63.296) (365) (63661)
- - - - - (63,296) (338784) (402,080) (16501) (418581)
- - - (15,948) - - 15948 - - -
76117 1,597,179 2,025,156 - 92926 (178540 (1,801310) 1811528 102189 1913717

76,117

1,597,179

1,025,156

91,264 91,264 (B0)] 90,694
- 11,7186 447 7,33

- 11,786 91,264 163,050 (123) 162,927

. 92,92 (106754) (1710,046) 1974578 102,066 2,076,644
1 ——

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEM 2 Bzt B S MBEHmETZ —285 -

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

74  Asia Resources Holdings Limited | 22 &RIZARB R A A

2021 2020
—g--F —T-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz TR FET
Cash flows from operating activities RELETBH2EERE
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF (BR) (359,824)
Adjustments for: FANIESEpAES
Interest income on bank deposits RITERFBWA 8 (342)
Interest income from an associate A NETFUERON 8 -
Compensation relating to termination of RIFWEEERGE 2
acquisition of Shenyang Properties LY (12,610)
Interest income relating to termination of RIEWIEEGE 2
acquisition of Shenyang Properties SN 8 (58,957) (14,338)
Dividend income LISRON 8 (52) (52)
Finance costs BB A 10 1,261 358
Amortisation of land use right b {5 R A 19 207 203
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME . BERZETE 17 2,790 [,512
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18(a) 2,579 2,751
Gain on bargain purchase =B 33 (U:0) -
Gain from changes in fair value of BEWMELATERHH
investment properties AU ss 16 (2,282) -
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at BAFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss CREECATE
(z) /E518 I an 1,685
Share of results of associates DMEHE N B EE 10,195 9,572
Provision for impairment loss on intangible assets & E R EE B A G 19 - 46,932
Provision for impairment loss on inventories FEREBERE - 967
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss on BfEe 2 REEE
deposits paid (EI#),/ Bk (4,313) 92,873
Provision for impairment loss on properties BRAPYEREEBER
under development 28,033
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss on RIELE AN ME
completed properties held for sale ZREEE (R A 25,348
Over-provision of land value added tax T IR E R R KR (9,298)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

2021 2020
—E-—& ZEZTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz TR FET
Operating cash flows before movements HEESEDAIEE
in working capital Reng 41,207 (186,230)
Decrease in properties under development BRAPYERD - 106,441
Decrease in completed properties held for sale FIEHE 2 BB MER D 18,729 149,766
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL,/(E) 312 (1.274)
Increase in trade receivable B 5 FEU AR KL N (2,467) (240)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits AR - e REM
and other receivables FEMRR R (38 00) /B (40,024) 27,645
Increase in amount due from an associate JRE Wi 2 2 B FUR S N = (243)
Decrease in trade payables E%FEHEEITMEX’J\ (17,891) (2.732)
Decrease in other payables and accruals Hib eI R E B AR (12,746) (52,188)
Decrease in contract liabilities BHEERD (15,644) (104,944)
Cash used in operations CEEEARS (28,524) (63,999)
Income tax paid BERFTER (214) -
Income tax refunded PSR 2 B 248 -
Cash payments for the interest portion of ReINHEESENBIHS
the lease liabilities (169) (358)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBMAR S (28,659) (64,357)
Investing activities REEH
Increase in restricted bank deposits R HIRITFRIL N (9 (2.551)
Interest received BHFE 13 342
Interest received relating to termination of RIFWBE RIS E 2 B W F A
acquisition of Shenyang Properties 16,441 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BENMRE (1,825) (8,792)
Dividend income & S 52 52
Refund of deposits paid BERES 2R 94,338 -
Net cash outflow to acquisitions of subsidiaries WENBATNRSRLF®E 33 (106,781) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETDESE /(R ASFE

investing activities
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid BEARAE
Principal portion of lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

INEE SR

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents  IR&NRIREFEN 2 EBRI

Bank balances and cash

RITEREAE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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MENFAE B
BERDAA AT FE
R RREFEWRDFR

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year REFIZHE & RREEEY

RERZRE MRS FEY

2021

—E-—F

Notes HK$°000
iz TR

(256)
(2,691)

(2,947)

(29,277)

46,063
2,248

2020
—E-EF
HK$'000
FHBT

(2.576)
(2,576)

(77,882)
127,285
(3,340)

46,063

46,063

BER 2 E R SR A M BmER 2 — &89 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the Company’s registered office is disclosed
in the corporate information of its annual report and its principal place
of business is Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower Shun Tak Centre, |68-200
Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group") are principally engaged in property sales,
investment operations and trading of bottled water in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(HK$) and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000), unless otherwise indicated.

APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”’) adopted by the
Group
The following new and amended standards that may be relevant to
the Group's operations have been adopted by the Group for the
first time for the financial period beginning on | April 2020.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKAS 39

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

(Amendments)

HKAS | and HKAS 8

(Amendments)

Definition of Material

The application of the above amended standards which are
effective for the financial period beginning on | April 2020 did not
have material financial effect to the Group for the current and prior
periods.

44 §

Il‘ll‘;\/\lj
TMNEREZEBRBERAR(TARR ] E
AREFAMKT AEREERAT &
BHEETEBERSMERAE ([HR
Frl) £ o KRRGFEMPRER 2 LR
EFRARERPHE HFrEHHE
WEAE B ERTHEET 16820058512
LT RE26IE2601 F o

ARAB /- HEREEZEKRATR - mEHK
BAR(TXARAREME R B GHE
BIAKEDETERPEARLME
(TREDREMEHE  RELENM
KKEH -

HEMBHRRAETZSY - BEEHP
S A SBHERERBEAOTM(T

EIL) ©

BT RS ST BB S
S8 B ([ % 78 81 76 3 25

)

PR BERH 2 F 5] RASIEET
BB HEER ([ -
BHEER )
THAFEEER T -TFMNA
—BRMNH B E KRR AT
B RN S BT R RO BT 8T AT 4
RTA -

BRMBREENEE RRHER
CHEY

BRMBRSENEE - MEREEYE
BB REER
FRREB G E
FIR(ETE)

BRI ENR I RREE EXANER
S EAIESH (BT E)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year

ended 3| March 2021:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4, and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
HKAS 16 (Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKAS 37 (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 17
HKAS I (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 (Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions'

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 22

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 20212
Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use*

Reference to Conceptual Framework’
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract!
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2018-2020°

Insurance Contracts and related amendments’
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the new
and revised HKFRSs will have a material effect on the amounts

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of

the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in

HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level [, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company:

0 has power over the investee;

0 is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee: and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,.vT\ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

*  deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in

accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in

accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and

*  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that

Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2021 % —

BB ERRMEE

T —F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such

treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,

would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

FZA=+—HILFE

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled

in exchange for those goods or services.

(i) Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the law that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control

of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

*  provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls

as the Group performs; or

0 does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

For properties that have no alternative use to the Group due
to contractual reasons and when the Group has an enforceable
right to payment from the customers for performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue as the
performance obligation is satisfied over time in accordance with
the input method for measuring progress, i.e. the costs incurred
up to date compared with the total budgeted costs, which depict
the Group's performance towards satisfying the performance

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Sales of properties (continued)
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior
to delivery of the properties to the customers are contract

liabilities.

For property sales contract for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment

and the collection of the consideration is probable.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the products is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and any identified

impairment loss at the end of the reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives after considering
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% — 25%

Leasehold improvements 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 12.5% — 30%
Machinery 10%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in

which the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally freehold office buildings, are held
for long-term rental yields and are not occupied by the Group.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently,
they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented in

profit or loss.

Water mining licence
Water mining licence is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Water mining licence is amortised on a

straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

Land use rights

The Group makes upfront payments to obtain operating leases of
land use rights. The land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. The upfront payments of the land use
rights are recorded as assets. The amortisation of land use rights is
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the unexpired

period of the land use rights.

Impairment of water mining licence

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for water mining licence at each reporting date. Water mining licence
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present values of those cash

flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

II‘I-F

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, interests in
associates is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

3.

FTESFTHBERGE)

REB 8472

BEAARARETHRTEEAL S

NZERE -EAXENREBEEZERTE
WRED <M R EERR - AL IFE

SRR B L F R -

BMERRZRENEERABRAE
BEFOAAREH B HRE  EERE
KE AP D D ERFIELERIBRS - R
ZBERT - RMIREFRESHHREER
FSWMAR - REEDE  REERT
ZEE* o B IRIR P ANTE AR A B TS AR R
R WREERRERAREEEHER
AlziEahEmEEPREmELHE
HARBEREBHE AR ZERBAER
ZBEAR S (BREE EBAAN
KERBERR ZBOREFRZEM
EHED)  MAREERIEERER
HZRRER AREREEAKED
EELAERETETHRKRZBE QT
SN FRIEZ G T HEREEIMNER ©

Annual Report 2021 ¥

89



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to

the extent of interests in associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings | to 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 % —

BB ERRMEE

T —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(©

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in

which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from

the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value method.
Variable lease payments for operating leases that depend on an index
or a rate are based on the market or rate at commencement date of
the lease and included in the total lease payments to be recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income when

they arise.

Lease income derived from the Group’s ordinary course of business is

presented as revenue.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or

translation of monetary items are recognised in the profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e,, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the

year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 % —

BB ERRMEE

T —F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans (state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme) are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee

administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’ contributions
subject to a cap monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group’s
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer's contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the Group participates in the relevant social retirement benefit
schemes (the "PRC Schemes"”) whereby the Group is required to
contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the PRC Schemes
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll
costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing

required contributions under the PRC Schemes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——
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FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (Continued)

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB ERRMEE
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included

in the accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Inventories — properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions, less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

Properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale upon completion of development activities,
which is when the relevant completion certificates are issued by the

respective government authorities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——
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FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories — completed properties held for sale
Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the completed properties
held for sale. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing

market conditions.

Inventories — merchandise

Merchandise are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to

be incurred to disposal.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

("FVTOCI"):

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

and selling; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income ("OCI") if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

* on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

0 it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivable, other receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, I2-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets are

assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,.vT\ 7f ﬁﬁ#ﬁ%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

*  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the

credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on the Group’s financial assets has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial assets are determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as

per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
an\ jﬁﬁ#&%‘%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EBEFHEKR(E)

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued) TETAE

Impairment of financial assets (continued) THEERE (&)

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) R
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information MEEHBERRZHFRNERHS
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and BN E#R - B I & TR U E A 6
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the (PN SHEFERERIESEA
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered WERF) X E HREWERM
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, S Bl BBERE (AR
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever BR4EERE) AEETHMES
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to BEE  GHEREEER(IEYE)
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures, % BEMENEREENIJRER
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off SEAUEIFEFF B HEEBIBTT ©
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries B R ILFEREM - EMERBYK
are recognised in profit or loss. B ERBERAER °

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL () FEHEEEELGERER
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of B EEBENGEREN T
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there M BHNBAR(BIBBRELRKN
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the BREBE) MNEDORKRA HE - &
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical AP RE M B AV B R E R R TR
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL PR L BB AETT - Wb ATIE 1R B Y
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is EH A - BHEEBEENG R
determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the e R R ML R N 2 £ 88 0 Thi%
weights. HAMEEENRR EEER -
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual —RimE  FHEEEBARES
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the HBBPYNFAREBNFEALR
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, emEEAEBFERHKEMNIREES R
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial EZHENZER - WIRR IR R
recognition. EENERNEITR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivables and amounts
due from customers are each assessed as a separate group.
Loans to related parties are assessed for expected credit

losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
:ﬁ j%ﬁﬁ%ﬁT

For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

3.

FTESHTBRGE)

THTA(E

Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEERKATA
Classification as debt or equity D ABETE R

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accruals) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability or where appropriate, a short period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and

recognises an associated liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the

consolidated statement of financial positions.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

4.

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using
straight-line method. The estimation of useful lives of the depreciable
assets is based on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are
reviewed at each end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to be valid.
The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on market value of the assets which require

the use of assumptions and estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

Carrying amount of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale. The directors estimate the net realisable
value for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale based primarily on the latest contract prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the directors perform an inventory review
on a product by product basis at the end of each reporting period
and assess the need for write down of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale. As at 31 March 2021, the
accumulated impairment on properties under development and
completed properties held for sale were approximately HK$96,857,000
(2020: HK$89,364,000) and HK$55,664,000 (2020: HK$62,740,000)

respectively.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets, interests
in associates and intangible assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm's length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. No impairment
loss on intangible assets has been provided during the year (2020:
HK$46,932,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL (including
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid
other taxes)) based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group's past history, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period as set out in note 3 — Financial Instruments. As at 3| March
2021, the aggregate carrying amounts of deposits paid and other
receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes)
amounted to approximately HK$566,306,000, net of ECL allowance
of approximately HK$73,357,000 (2020: HK$614,053,000, net of
ECL allowance approximately HK$67,682,000) and approximately
HK$44,208,000 (2020: HK$51,265,000) respectively.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$132,516,000 (2020: Nil) are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by the independent qualified professional
valuer. In determining the fair values, the valuation involves certain
assumptions of market conditions. In relying on the valuation reports,
the directors have exercised their judgment and are satisfied that the
methods of valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes in assumption relating to these factors could affect the
reported fair values of the investment properties. See note 16 for

further disclosures.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone

credit rating).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5A. Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the capital structure of the
Group consisted of debt and equity attributable to owners of

the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new shares issues, as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. €@ T H (&)

5A. Capital risk management (continued) SA. EXEfR EE ()
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as REHREELZRNT -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FABT
Total debts HETS 9,325 -
Shareholders’ equity i R i 2 1,974,578 1,811,528
Gearing ratio BfEL R 0%
5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. 2@ T AES
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FABT
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEGABRZ
profit or loss TRIEE 2,866 2,855
Amortised cost B SH AR AR 709,854 746,504
Financial liabilities EA =l
Amortised cost B SH AR AR 121,972 137,729
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5.

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

ERITAE(E)
SC.HOBRBEEREZERBKE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits paid, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, amount due from an associate,
amount due from the substantial shareholder, restricted
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables and accruals and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate

measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group's financial
results and its cash flows. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from investments in subsidiaries primarily
with respect to RMB. Foreign currency risk also arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations, which are mainly
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 March 2021, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$31,444,000 (2020: HK$32,032,000) higher/lower, mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses of the deposit paid
for acquisition of Shenyang Properties to be refunded and
the related compensation and interest income receivable as
disclosed in notes 25(ii) and 25(v). The Group currently has not
entered into any contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk.
However, the management monitors foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of change in market interest rates and the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities except
for amount due from an associate, deposit paid, restricted
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and other payables,
details of which have been disclosed in notes 20, 25(ii), 27 and
29(i). Due to the fixed interest rate on amount due from an
associate, deposit paid and other payables and the insignificant
bank interest income, management considers that cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks of the Group are insignificant and

therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented thereon.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty
to a transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its obligation
which results in financial loss. The gross carrying amounts of
restricted bank deposits, bank balances, amount due from
an associate, amount due from the substantial shareholder,
deposits paid, other receivables (excluding prepayments and
prepaid other taxes) and trade receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position of approximately
HK$783,211,000 (2020: HK$810,784,000) represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits and bank balances
are considered to be insignificant because the counterparties are
banks/financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade balances individually.

Trade receivables are written off where there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators for no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of
a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the group, and a
failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than
| year past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net
impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the same
line item.

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL on trade receivables were insignificant and thus
no loss allowance was recognised.

For other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid
other taxes), deposits paid, amount due from the substantial
shareholder and amount due from an associate, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on its recoverability based on historical settlement
records and past experience.

Regarding the credit risk arising from the deposits paid,
compensation and interests relating to the termination of the
acquisition of Shenyang Properties as detailed in notes 25(ii) and
25(v), Mr. Li Yuguo has repaid partial interests of approximately
RMB15,076,000 and repaid approximately RMB83,870,000
to the Group in compliance with the repayment terms in the
further supplemental agreement dated 3 July 2020. In addition,
Mr. Li has provided his personal assets as securities to secure the
remaining debts. After assessing the value of the securities and
the repayment history of Mr. Li, the directors of the Company
considers that the credit risk arising from the remaining deposits
paid, compensation and interests in sum of approximately
RMB539,389,000 (2020: RMB586,851,000) is low.

122 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A 7]

5. EMTA(E)
5C. BB AR ERE B ERBE (K

EEmE (&)
AESHRUKERME - ARBEIZR
BHEEEREAHEZEFER
EITRERHE ©

B 5 BRI B AL 5 1B TR
WEEIER T T AMIE - BEMRE
BRI E 2 SR B ESARE
ETAKENEE S RN ARE
B FH IR AR R A O -

B 5 U AR AR E B B &
M2 RREREFE - g
BEMEH SR AMERIER -

AREEFEE ZRWERR 2 BHAE
EBBEYTEXR AMHBE_—F
——FR-E-_TF=A=1+—H
IEFE W ARTERE TR B -

1 EL i U BR R (T B R TR 3R
REMBHRIE)  BENHRE - E
WEERRFARER-REER
AREMS  EEESEHAIELE
Bald - UREBENEELCEK
BELSR - B HE AU E R E R RE
fii o

EKRIFRBEEMESEND
e - BERFE (K253 &
W) MEENEERREM
5 EIRLACEBEITH»FELN
AR ¥ 15076,0007C & B 1% R H H
BT _TFL+A=HZE—F@
FHFERPRERGERAAREBEEE
#49 A R #83,870,0007C ° Lo - ZF
SFEDREEBAAEEERER -
DAERFIRER - LFE KR
BERTHERNENRGLE A7)
EETRAEMNEE  BERANEZ
HEA X AR 539,389,0007T
ZEZZTF : AR¥586851,000
TLFEEMEERR AK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. TRITA(E\)
5C. AR bR EHE B R R BK (E)

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It also considers available

reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
. internal credit rating;
. external credit rating;

*  actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligations;

* actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of individual debtor;

*  significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the debtors; and

*  significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
status of the debtors and changes in the operating results
of the borrower.

The Group uses four categories for those receivables which
reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined
for each of those categories.
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

5. ST AR(E)
5C. BB ERBEERERBEE (&)

A summary of the assumptions underlying the Group’s ECL

model is as follows:

Category Group definition of category

bl FEEHHERBINER

Performing Debtors have a low risk of default and a
E® strong capacity to meet

Underperforming
E2pES

Non-Performing

BEHAZORRRELBENED

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are
more than 90 days past due

FEY AR EE R BEE I ¢ R
&/E}Z$%5§W@Hﬂ£ BI0K - AR
EERE R EEE

Interest and/or principal repayments are

TR more than 365 days past due

FEBR,/ AL ERAPBBEI6SK
Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments are
B! more than 3 years past due and there is no

reasonable expectation of recovery
MER/FAEROHBR=FA5
ESEE RN E
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Basis for recognition of
ECL provision
BRRAANEEEERENER

|2 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
I2 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime.

12fE A evTEHIE1E - BN FEHFERA
PRNEANEE - FRHEEENE(E
FEHRTE -

Lifetime expected losses

EEFEMERER

Lifetime expected losses

EEFEMENER

Asset is written off



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. €@ T H (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies 5C. BRBEEEERKE(E)
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEREE (&)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing AEBERBANBHREEREEES
for ECL on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group BRFAEHEERBRE M - £
considers historical loss rates for each category of receivables HEEHEEEERE  AEFUR
and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data. BB GENFE S BIER AER -

It 2370 3 T B R R
AT -

The Group provides for credit losses against deposits paid, other AEBHMENIEZS - HtEKER
receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes), BN BIEBMNRIE R TEHH
amount due from the substantial shareholder and amount due TH) ~ FEULE B A% SR FRIE M e U
from an associate as follows: ERBFIASREERENT :
Basis for Carrying
recognition of Estimated gross Loss amount (net of
Expected  expected credit carrying amount allowance impairment
Company internal credit rating credit loss rates  loss provision at default provision provision)
EARBEER BUOBH REE
RAARBEEFIME BHEERRLE BENER bt REAE  AEERRE (IREESS)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER iR TER
As at 31 March 2021
R-B--£zZA=+-H
Performing 0.1% - 1.5% 12 month expected losses 685,267 685,267
% NERESER
Non-Performing 100%  Lifetime expected losses 13,357
8 FRORBER
Total
Bt 758,624 13,357 685,267

As at 31 March 2020

RZB-¥FZA=1-H

Performing 0.1% - 1.5% 12 month expected losses 694,321 - 694,321
fla 1{EABHEE

Non-Performing 100%  Lifetime expected losses 67,682 67,682 =
a FENELFS

Total

st 762,003 67,682 694,321
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. €RTE (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies S5SCHBRBEZEHERYE (&)
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEREE (&)
The loss allowance provision for deposits paid and other RZE-_—F=ZA=+—8nEMN
receivables as at 31 March 2021 reconciles to the opening loss R4 N H b FE U BR FGTHIR B 5 18 5
allowance for that provision as follows: R EFBFEROERAOT ¢
Non-
Performing performing Total
EE TR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT THET THET
Opening loss allowance as at | April 2019 RZZ—NEFMNA—HRK
FOBERE 1,088 4,445 5,533
Transfer to non-performing HEERR (1,088) 1,088 -
Additional loss allowance BINEERE 68,458 68,458
Written off 3 (4,260) (4,260)
Exchange realignment I 5 A (2,049) (2,049)

Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 M-ZE-_ZEH=A=+—HANEX

and opening loss allowance as at BEBEINN_Z-ZTF
| April 2020 MA—-BEENEERE
Exchange realignment i X R

Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 R-ZE-—#=ZA=+—HANE
RERRE - 13,357 73,357

126 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | 22 &RIZARB R A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework to meet the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

The maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

5.

ﬁ%ﬂl

L (%)
C.OBRBEZAEREF(R)

MBECRBERRKRETES
=g MEFCERUGBEZIRD
BeRBREBREE UWnEhER
R PERRERE KR
BeEBRTRE AKEFZBERR
THEBEERDESRAR - HER
FHEERAAREBERRERET X
emEERBGBZIHABRR

PN

TEESR
TERHAVNAEBITESRARE L
R A MBI AR - TRIVIBER
AEEAXNEREBEZ&F RN
RERBEIANERSRER
8 o

FTEERMABZINHMA DR
BERERBHMESR -

ZREEMNERASHETRE
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table (continued)

As at 3| March 2021
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2020
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade payables

Other payables and accruals

Lease liabilities

5. SRTE(E)

5C. B EmbE: EHE B EREE
(&)
MBI E LR (&)
TS ()
Weighted Total
average carrying
effective Total amount
interest Within Over undiscounted at year
rate | year I-2years 2.5 years Syears  cash flows ended
& RiTRA EX
REAE -Ef  -ERE  WERE  BEENML  RERE  AKEE
% HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000
Tan  Tan ThR Ten TAr TR
gt S
Zh=t-A
FESRAR
EARNER
EfENEHR
E:tER
BEaR
121,786 122,019 121,972
N-g-%F
ZR=t-H
it ERER
BAEMER - 72995 - - - 72995 72995
EftERERR
EBH = 61,833 = = = 61,833 61,833
HERE 8% 2503 55 - - 3055 2901
137331 552 - - 137,883 37,729
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. ERTAR(E)
SC.OKRABREERZERHE

(continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment
in listed equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, the management
monitors the price risk and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 0% higher/lower, the Group's profit
for the year ended 31 March 2021 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$287,000 (2020: increase/decrease by
approximately HK$286,000). This is mainly due to the changes in

fair value of held-for-trading investments.

(&)

AE®mEE

AEBAKRER EHRAREZMA
AXBEAERER  EEERBE
FEETREREEH IREEAE
BEAHAR - AEE 2 RAER
RREBEFRETEHARISM
BR R 2 BANE S © Bhoh -
EREeERERRER  YNERH
RRZRENEERER

HEERER — SRS
AT BREEDTIRER RS B H
Z A EIRRBRAETT o

THARAER LA TI0% - K&
BEz—_Z-_—4F=A=+—H1
FE 2w, 5 4287,000
BIL(ZE-FF - #5480
286,000/ 7T) - X EXIFFEEER
BEZ AT EESHTE -
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
5D. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

and

*  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current market transactions

as input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level | to Level 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable:

Level I quoted prices in active markets for the same

instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging);

Level 2. quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market
data; and

Level 3:  valuation techniques for which any significant input

are not based on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position (continued)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments

recorded at fair value hierarchy:

As at 31 March 2021 N-B=—F
=A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABR
through profit or loss CEMEE
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-2F
=A=+—AH

Financial assets at fair value BRAFEABR

Level |
E-8
HK$'000
FET

5. SRIT HE (&)
5D. A F1(E (&)

REGEH BRI RAER 2 A FE
12 (&)
TRETRRAFEDRHRED
TRTADH

Level 2 Level 3 Total
et £ At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FET

through profit or loss ZERMEE 2,855 - - 2,855
There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 in the PRREFEAE—REE_F2H
both years. I R -

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both years. TR E 5 & A I B B A 32 = ARk
BE=REN -
Fair value as at
RTIBHAZATE
Fair value Valuation techniques  Significant

Financial assets 2021 2020 hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs

SREE ZTZTF AFEER RERORIZHABE EXATUBERGHANE

Listed equity securities In Hong Kong In Hong Kong Level | Quoted bid prices N/A

classified as financial HK$2,866,000 HK$2,855,000 in an active market

assets at FVTPL (note 26)

HERERTE REE REE £ RIBRTIHZ RE TER

AARRCERMEEY 2,866,00078 7T 2,855,000 7T

FHRAES (HiE26)
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For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components of the Group.
These information are reported to and received by the chief operating
decision maker (*CODM") for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

The Group has the following operating segments during the year.

These segments are managed separately.

(1) For water business, the CODM regularly reviews the
performance of the water business in the PRC. These operations
have been aggregated into a single operating segment and

named “Water business’.

(2) For property development and property investment business,
the CODM regularly reviews the performance of the property
development and property investment business. These
operations have been aggregated into a single operating segment

and named “Property development and investment”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 March

Sales to external customers
Total revenue

Segment results

Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Central administration costs

Gain on bargain purchase

Share of results of associates

Finance costs

Profit/(loss) before taxation

Water

business

kEH
2021 2020
ZB--f CZZCTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TiEx TAL

268

268

L (5,275) (57.739)

By
=
=

BATET ARG SREEL
MRS/ (BR)

hRTBEAA

AEWRNE

HEBERARE

BERA

AR/ (BR)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external

customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the vyear.

7 EER(HE)
TERAR KA

T AREERTHEDEZRARE
B2 B

BEZ=A=1T—HLEE

Property development
and investment Consolidation
NERRRE g8
2021 2020 2021 2020

“2--f “2-TF ZB--f CZC%E
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$°000 HK$'000

TiEn T TiEn T
201242 201510
201242 201510

@534 IRTERIN  (330073)

I (1,685)
(16,763) [ARATYS
1,856 -
(10,195) (957
(1,261) (358)
(359.824)

NEREZBABERBEIIBER 2K
A FRTESBRZHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. &R (&

SN =

Segment assets and liabilities THEEENERE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by N TARNEREERBBERITRENE
reportable segments: Sl 2o
Water Property development
business and investment Consolidation
kEH NERRRRE B
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

B -Z°%%F ZE--F C-Z-%F CB--f —Z°%F
HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$°000 HK$'000
TiEn TAL TAT TEL TAT TAL

ASSETS aE
Segment assets PEEE 371,549 371019 1,588,394 1,496,306 1,959,943 1,867,325
Unallocated corporate assets RORGFEEE 315,635 248099
2,275,578 2115424

LIABILITIES aE
Segment lablties SEEfE (3,268) IRAPON  (170.206) EOREE  (173,55¢) ERRCALL)
Unallocated corporate liabilties FORAEEE (25,380) (37510)

(198,934) AN
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the directors of the Company monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, bank
balances and cash that are held by the investment holding companies
and other receivables that are receivable by the investment holding
companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly include lease liabilities
and other payables and accruals borne by the investment holding
companies).

Other segment information

Water
business
k¥R

2021 2020

“B--F C-3C%F
HK$'000
TR

HK$ 000
TAT

Additions to property, plant and equipment &% - BiE k& E 12,444
Depreciation i ®)
Other gains L 137
Other losses EEE E
Provision for impairment loss on intangible  &f/ &R ERERE

assets (46932)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on Bftk4 2 FEBEDE /(&)

deposits paid
Provision for impairment loss on properties  EEH#% 7 HEEERE

under development
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on #eiti &2 EERANEL
completed properties held for sale HEBEEE/(BE)
Provision for impairment loss on inventories  Z&REFEEE
THEER BRRE
RAMFLTREDHFER

Over-provision of land value added tax
Gain from changes in fair value of
investment properties

6. /-\* ﬁ*’l’(mﬁ)
Aﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁf;(,ﬁ)
RIAEDBERBERSEROPRERZ B
B AARIEFUTRELEREES
AHMENHEEE  BERBE:

PMBBEEASRERREDE KA

HEm%éfF(?E%@%%% B B5 K 5%

- REERARFKEZRITAEBRRR

ﬁ&&ﬁ% Fe o~ B e Wz B A R s R
I

PMBREADEEAREDE  BRAD
EtXaBE(TEZERHERERKRE
RN B R AR 2 Bt R A BR K S AT

BRI
Property development and

investment Unallocated Consolidation

NERRRRE FAR &

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Z8--f -ZT-%%F Z3--f “T-FF CBC-F CTCTF
HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn T TR T8 TR THL

16,444 40 62 16,444 12,546

(2,291) (3357) (5,369) (4263)
108,452 ! 843 107,508 27950

(1) , 97 (41) (60825)

= (46930)
- (92873)
- (28033)
- (25,348)
- (%67)
- 9,298
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the PRC

and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information about

its non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below:

external customers

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7 EER(HE)

#hEEH
AEBEMALEHEEE - FEARE
% o

AEBEBINBEP ZWARBREIE
MBEBE(RMIBUES D) BRI
mr

Revenue from

Non-current assets

REMBEFHBA FRBEE
2020 2021 2020
—E--F ZT-TF B ZIT-EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET FET FHET
The PRC s 201,510 1,226,937 1,042,776
Hong Kong EB = 780 2,950

Information about major customers

Other than two tenants from whom the lease income represents 24%
and 10% of the total revenue of the Group respectively, there is no
other single customer who contributes over 0% of the total revenue

of the Group.

No customer contributed over 10% of total revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE—-Z —

7. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

Revenue from contracts with

customers

Sales of properties

Sales of bottled water

Revenue from leases

Total revenue

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Performance obligations

—F=A=+—AILFE

7. WA

Information about the Group's performance obligations is summarised below:

Sales of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon handover of the properties. There

were no transaction prices allocated

(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2021.

Sales of bottled water

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods. All of the Group’s

revenue from sale of goods was recognised at the point in time when control of the

products was transferred to customers.

Leases

For operating leases:

Lease payments that are fixed

Notes
et
REEFEHZWA
(a)
MEHE
MEEKIHE
HEZWA (b)
BB
Kt -
(a)
to the remaining performance obligations
(b)

MEERENS
EEEE %

AEBRAFEZWADHTAT

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
TERT

2020
—E-THE

—=—=

HK$'000
TET

201,242
268

201,510

201,510

BAEE
FRAEEMNEHEEERBRMT -

BHEENZRNYERER -R_E=_—F
ZAZT - HBESREERTENEECRE
FRERER R ) R S 1E ©

HRENKHE

BHOBTRRNEMEEN - AEBAAH
MIHERBARE REFEEETEPNR
R BB JE AR

HE
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FHEIT
|
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

8. OTHER GAINS 8. Hfttlz
2021 2020
—E-——F ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
Interest income on bank deposits RITHERF EHA 342
Interest income from an associate ’9‘5’%’& AR EWA -
Exchange gain, net B 34 U 2 7 FE -
Government grant B 4R B -
Dividend income from financial assets at BAFEFTAEBRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEREBA 52
Sundry 18 608
Compensation relating to termination of RIEW RIS Y% 2 B
acquisition of Shenyang Properties 12,610
Interest income relating to termination of BIEWERG Y2 2 R EHA
acquisition of Shenyang Properties 14,338
107,508 27,950
9. OTHER LOSSES 9. HAtbiEsia
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Compensation relating to delay of BN 2 HE
handover of properties (8,153)
Exchange loss, net &R EETE (52,672)
(60,825)
sk
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B E A
2021 2020
—E-—F —ToTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFE 358
Interest on other payables E At FE TR TN 2 =
358

138 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | 22N &RERB R A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

| 1. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION |, BRFLAD&E R (B518)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

The Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation ZN&EEZBREIADER(FHE)
is arrived at after charging/(crediting):  JARHEKR, (5t A) T 5K\

#E/H:

Directors’ emoluments (note |2) ExMe(HiEi2) 3,377
Other staff costs H 8 TA 10,197
Other staff's retirement benefits scheme BB T ZiRKEHAET 8K

contributions 1,218
Total staff costs BT 14,792
Auditors' remuneration AN &
— audit services — ZBURTS 960
— non-audit services — IR ERT 304

1,264

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - &= MREITE 1,512
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 2751
Amortisation of land use right o $h {50 R AR 4 5H 203
Lease payment not included in the measurement WAt AT E A EFENTHE

of lease liabilities (note 18(c)) IR (BT 18(c)) 228
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair X AFEFFABZEZ @

value through profit or loss BEZAFEMNE) BB 1,685
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEB €
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as ENENEBUES MM T :
follows:
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total
Eznt HERAMEN RIEATBHR ag
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Z8--F C5C%F ZBC-F CEC%F ZBC-F CT05F ZEC-F 0 CEC%E
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tax TEL Tax TAL TaR TAL TAT TATL

Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman) FEREE(FR) 384
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James YBBLEE 700
Ms. Guo Yumei 2EELL 384
[ 468

Non-executive directors: FHTES

Mr. Yang Xiaogiang BNREE
(Vice chairman) (B1%E) 192
Mr. Huang Yilin HFRMEE 192
384
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) |2. EE£F#{4 (&)
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme

Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total

Ezhe HERHMER RIERG AR o
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
c§--F CRoRF CRC-f CRC®E CRC-F CETRF 8- CR0EF
HK$'000  HKF000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T TEr TEx TEr TEx TEr  TEx  TEn

Independent non-executive
directors:

BUFYTES:
Mr. Ba Junyu BFEE
Mr. Zhu Xueyi REERE
Mr. Wong Chung Man EfUEE

2,270

2320

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 3| March 2021 and 2020.

864 3377

RBE_ZTE-Z—FR-_ZF=ZFF=H
=+—HLEFER  FAEEREIZNT
EEMEERBREMASIRMALTEE
FoReBMBEE REE-Z=—
FR-_ZE-_FEF=ZA=ZF+—HLEFE
A B E S N E R B RE T A B
4o
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

|3. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. [EEBN&
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) EEBBFAL

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for
the year included 2 (2020: 2) directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in note |2 above. The emoluments for

the remaining 3 (2020: 3) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e REAET
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR KAE K5t 2 4 3

The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2020: 3) individuals fell

within the following bands:

AEELAERRFALZHEEEE
RARAME(ZE_FF : MR)E
= HMEFHBEN LR - 8
T=R(ZF=FF : ZF) Ao
BT

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
2,485

86

2,571

e T¢ =F)AL
ZBEN :PL/{—F%’E

Number of individuals

A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Z T2 1,000,000 70 2
HK$ 1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T [
3
(b) Senior management of the Group (b) XEBZEREEE

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior management
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of them has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 3|
March 2021 and 2020.
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AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

14. TAXATION 14. Bi18
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZEZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Current tax: BIEABLIE ¢
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEH -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — B ERET -
Total current tax expenses BIHATRIE A 4858 =
Over-provision in prior years: BEFEHRERE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENET -
Deferred income tax: EEREH
— Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilittes - IEXEFIIBEELE N, CRI)
(Note 31) (Hfat31) (4,904)
Income tax expenses/(credit) for the year KEEHREHRBAY(E%) (4,904)
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: BE-Z-—F=ZA=1T—HLFE -
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the EBEBEE ZHFTERTIRN D IRBE
year ended 31 March 2021. 165%(ZFE=_FF 1 |65%) BETEF
1585
Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax BE-_Z-_—F=ZA=+—HIFE -
at 25% (2020: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2021. PR HBARAERLS T _FF

25%) BN P BB EMEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

| 4. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14, BiIH (48)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses
amounting to approximately RMB41,287,000 as at 31 March 2021
(2020: RMB41,591,000) that will expire within 5 years for offsetting
against future taxable profits. The tax losses of approximately
HK$ 119,056,000 as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$107,498,000) are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits in
Hong Kong. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which

NZEBE-—F=A=+—H - TEs
SEOABANRE4 28700 (=T =
T ARBE41591,0007T ) 2 B HE &
BERAEERBEE  HMEBER
PRI F AN NE A 3 R R ERBL
HA o M- B-—F=A=+—8 -
BEHI19,0560008 T (=T ZFF :
107,498,000 7T ) 2 %t 18 5 18 7] i R

the above tax losses can be utilised. B AR KA BB 2 BRB & - AR
WA AR A A B) A b i BB S 18 R SR
ZIERB T MU BERRLEHRIEE

= o

AEEZ OB, (E%) TR
AREREMEEREEZ BB

The income tax expenses/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to
the profit/(loss) before taxation per consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: R (EE)EERNT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FABT
Profit/(loss) before taxation B AR, (E518) (359,824)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 1ZEFB SRR 165%
(2020: 16.5%) (ZB-TF : 165%)
SAEZHIE (59,371)
Tax effect of share of result of associates Sax (i) i /NE]|
REIMBEE 1,579
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for B IEM S TEMN
tax purposes Xz RBTE 24,142
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BB S BAERD
purposes WAZ G2 (6,802)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KREERZHRIEA
ERZRGEE 34,788
Unrecognised deferred tax arising from TRERELY
temporary difference RERIBELETRIE 23,840
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BRI R ERR ZHIBEE
recognised (125)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ H {th FDARE R 48 & 7 i /B
operating in other jurisdictions RATNEBRE 2 RBETE (22,955)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE _
Income tax expenses/(credit) for the year KEEREHRMAY(EE) (4,904)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

I5. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE I5.

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY FOR THE YEAR

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share attributable to

the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Profit/(loss) wAL(EER)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the AAREBABREARFEZ
owners of the Company wmAL (EE)

Number of shares v =]

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for F{EstE GIRERZEF]
the purpose of basic earnings/(loss) per share  (JE518) 2 @ AX HntE
(Note) FHEE (M)

Note:

The basic and diluted profit/(loss) per share are the same for the years ended 3| March

2021 and 2020, as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence.

REERDABEEAEEE
REF,(BE)

AATEEAEESRERRT, (6
18) TR B A TR E S -

2021 2020
—E-— —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT

(338,784)

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
’000 Shares '000 Shares
T

7,611,690

Hiat
MR ETMETEIYE LAR  guB=E—
A

T FR-_T_TFE-A=FT—HILFEESRE
AREERF(EE)ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - T - —F=A=+—HILtFE

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

FBUWEEINB A RIER

Additions through acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 33) (Ktat33)
Fair value changes NEEE)
Exchange realignment PE 3 SR
At the end of the year FR

Amount recognised in profit or loss for investment
properties

Rental income from operating leases

Direct operating expenses on investment EERSRAZEREMEZ
properties that generated rental income BEEEERYE

Unrealised profit on property revaluation AAREBMENTER
included in gain from changes in fair value Frisiss 2 M E G
of investment properties KRB A

On 24 June 2020, the Group completed the acquisition of investment
properties through acquisition of subsidiaries at a consideration of
RMB100,000,000. Investment properties are situated in PRC and are
held under medium-term leases. Details of the acquisition are set out

in note 33.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | 22 & JRIZAR AR A 7]

l6.

KEgEHEZHS A

REYE
2021
—_E_—F
HK$’000
FET

120,830
2,282

9,404

REBwEFRREYFENEERE
]

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT

RZE-TENA-+MNA  KEESE
BB B AR TR BBRENE R
B/A AR 1000000007 » HEYEA
RPBEREFEHAERE - WEEIEY
FIEE M3 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 6. REYZ (&)
Contractual obligation GHEME
As at 31 March 2021, there is no contractual obligation to RZEBE-_—F=ZA=+—H " HEE
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs, B EEHAEREESBBEES -
maintenance or enhancements. HEITTRONANEE -
Leasing arrangements HEZH
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating REMEZKLHERBTHEP - 77
leases. The future minimum lease payments receivable under non- B EHE TSR RFERENK
cancellable operating leases are as follows: LN
2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Within one year —FRX -
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZENF(BREERE) -
Over five years RENE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

wm

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

l6.

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Valuation processes of the Group

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March
2021 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by the

independent qualified professional valuer, AP Appraisal Limited.

Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the
management, audit committee and the independent valuer annually, in

line with the Group's annual reporting date.
The management:

. verifies major inputs to the independent valuation report;

0 assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior valuation report; and
. holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation methodology

The Group completed its annual valuation on investment properties.
The fair values of investment properties are generally arrived by
adopting the direct market comparison method by making reference
to a combination of comparable market transactions and asking prices

of comparable property.
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6. REY (5E)

EEE 1L EBRE

FEBEREMER_ZE-_—F=A
=T -HORAFEDNRBIGEREE
{H{BRNAP Appraisal Limited#7T B4 {E1S
}Ij:ll o

EHEE BRLEQNBUAEMEF
MEEEBRERERETH®R  BAEH
ZFEREBH -

BEE

. BREWY
b=

HERENEZHAR

« AHEMEAEESBERERSEH

o BBV HERETRR ©

15185 %
AEEBEEKERKRENENFER
B WRENENRAFE-REAEED
BHEE(H2RABLBEMERX SR
AALBMENRENAS)SH -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #;

6. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

BB ERRMEE

2T —

FZA=+—HILFE

Valuation methodology (continued)

Detail of valuation methodology are as follows:

Non-financial assets

FERMEE

Leasehold land and factory

HEL R TR

Leasehold land

HE+

As at 31 March 2021, the fair value measurement of the Group's
investment properties is categorised at level 3. During the year ended

31 March 2021, there were no transfers into or out of level 3.

Valuation methodology

fhETE

Direct comparison approach and
made reference to comparable

sales transactions as available in

the market
ERLBER2BRMBAE 2
ENRHEERS

Direct comparison approach and
made reference to comparable
sales transactions as available in
the market
BHERELBUERZRH
AELEHERS

BARL

6. REY (5E)

EEFH G EBE(E

BEDEAZFHBAT

Key unobservable

inputs to the valuation

EZEZTAIBERARE

PRC comparable ranging from
RMB2,000 to RMB3,000 per
square metre
NFHFIKARE2000TE
AR®3,0007THFE A& L&
ME 13t & T

PRC comparable ranging from
RMB201 to RMBI,400 per
square metre

NI HFIRARK0ITE
AEE 14007 Ky B A] & Lo 80
MELH

EMEND

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

TR B RE ARERE
NFEZ BE

A significant increase in the
adjustment factors used would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa
FrAHEBERARENEE
RAFHEAREZM - RZTA

A significant increase in the
adjustment factors used would
result in a significant increase in
fair value, and vice versa
FrANAEERARENGE
RAFEREEM  RZTA

R-F-—#=A=+-0 AKER
SF{EE+E /\QEE%_”
FZA=+—HLFELE

o B

BRAZ=ZAXEE=REL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - T - —F=A=+—HILtFE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. 9% - BERRE

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Construction
equipment  improvements vehicles Machinery in progress Total
B RER ik
BAZRE ES3S RE B ERIR 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL Thr Thr ThL Thr Thr
Cost: A
Asat | April 2019 RZB-AEMA-A 2107 6,335 3352 = 1,670 13484
Additions 7 102 = 160 = 12,284 12,546
Exchange realignment EHHZ (120) (398) (228) = (433) (1,179)
As at 31 March 2020 and R-2-8F=A=1-ER
1 April 2020 “ECEENA-H 2,109 5937 3284 - 13521 24851
Additions R
Additions through acquisition of FRUBHBARER
subsidiaries
Adjustments* Bl
Exchange realignment B BE
As at 31 March 2021 R-Z--E=B=1-H 2,447 6,403 3,559 17917 15,634 45,960
|
Accumulated depreciation FERAE
and impairment:
Asat | April 2019 RZB-AEMA-A 855 2357 2656 - - 5,868
Charge for the year ERX i 37 798 u = = 1512
Exchange realignment EREE (61) (17) (186) - - (419
As at 31 March 2020 and R=Z=2£ZB=1+-AR
1 April 2020 “Z-2EMA-A Ll6l 2983 2817 = = 6961
Charge for the year ERTH
Accumulated depreciation through EANERBAAZINE
acquisition of subsidiaries
Exchange realignment 5 8%
As at 31 March 2021 RZBZ-£=R=1-A 1,672 4,041 3,290 3,720
Carrying amounts: RAEE:
As at 3| March 2021 R=B--f=p=+-A 269 14,197 15,634 33,237
—
As at 3 March 2020 RZEZEE=R=1—H 948 2954 467 - 13521 7,890
& Related to over-provision of cost in the prior year. * BRBAEFERRABEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

|7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% ~ BEK&EGHE)
(CONTINUED)
Amount recognised in profit or loss REZHERRZHE
2021 2020
—E-—f —T - E4E
HK$°000 HK$000
THERT FAET
Rental income from machinery leased under REKEHEET
operating leases AR B2 ) HE 2 U -
Leasing arrangements HEZH
The machinery is leased to tenants under operating leases. The future MR EHEEETHES - TAIHEHE
minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable operating KEHETREBARKERENFHWM
leases are as follows: S 8
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Within one year —FR -
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZENF(BREERSE) -
Over five years RENE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

18. LEASES 18. HE
The Group as a lessee KEBEERBAHEA
The Group has lease contracts for buildings with lease periods of | to AEBEEHER R E=FNEFHME
3 years. EE5H -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) RAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEEFEREEEANFTANEREE
movements during the year are as follows: KEBMT
Offices
MOE
HK$'000
TET
As at | April 2019 RZE-NFMA—H 5,726
Depreciation e (2751)
Exchange realignment HE 34, 30 B (65)
As at 31 March 2020 and | April 2020 R-E_TF=-A=+—H8BK
—E-TFMA—H 2910
Additions R 689
Depreciation e (2,579)
Exchange realignment BE N A R
As at 31 March 2021 WRZZE_—F=A=+—H
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEABERNFAMNKREENRES N
during the year are as follows: N
HK$'000
THETT
As at | April 2019 RZE-—NFMHA—H 5,542
Interest expense MBI 358
Payments N (2.934)
Exchange realignment bE 3 (65)
As at 31 March 2020 and | April 2020 RZBEZZF=A=+—H8K
—E-FFMA—A 2,901
Additions P
Interest expense FBEFAX
Payments (EN
Exchange realignment bE 3
As at 31 March 2021 RZFZ—F=A=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

18. LEASES (CONTINUED) 18. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) EEEERBEAHEA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued) (b) HEEE(HE)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$000
THERT FHET
Analysed into: PaRiv=1E
Current portion BNERER 5 2,356
Non-current portion FEENEREL 5 545
2,901
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are (c) MEZFTPHERZBELHNT
as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F ke e 35
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TR
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 358
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEENE 2,751
Expense relating to short term leases RAEIHERM X
(included in administrative expenses) (FTATTHAX) 228
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBEP R L% 3,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BMEEE
Water
Land use mining
right licence
(Note i) (Note ii) Total
T E AR Rk
(Kteti) (Htezii) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THET TET

Cost: BN

As at | April 2019 RZE—NFMOA—H 10,613 374,412 385,025

Exchange realignment IE 5 F (709) (280) (989)

As at 31 March 2020 and R-B-EF=A=+—-HK 9,904 374,132 384,036

I April 2020 —E-2FNA—H

Exchange realignment P& 5 F 830 328 1,158

As at 31 March 2021 R-ZB=-—-H=HA=+—8H 10,734 374,460 385,194

Accumulated amortisation A EHERAE ¢

and impairment:

As at | April 2019 RZZE-NFMA—A 150 = 150

Amortisation for the year FREEH 203 = 203

Impairment loss for the year FERRFEEE = 46,932 46,932

Exchange realignment P& 5 T (15) - (15)

As at 31 March 2020 and R-ZBE-ZEF=A=+—-HK 338 46,932 47,270

I April 2020 —E-2FNA-H

Amortisation for the year FREH 207

Exchange realignment 0E 5 3% 36

As at 31 March 2021 R=—B=-—F=HA=+—H 46,932 47,513

Carrying amount: BRTEIME :

As at 31 March 2021 R-B-—-H=A=+—H 10,153 327,528 337,681
—

As at 31 March 2020 R-F_FTF=A=1—H 9,566 327,200 336,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0}

(i)

Land use right represents the right to use the land for water exploitation activities in

Hunan. The land is located at #3758 %7 BT IT R 5= AR = SIEER A A

Land use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its lease term of 50 years.

Water mining licence represents the right to conduct water exploitation activities
in Hunan. The subsidiary, # R #TH = (85 R KBMRAF) had entered into an
agreement with Hunan Government to grant the subsidiary a water mining licence
for exploitation of mineral water for 5 years. The subsidiary has the priority to
extend the mineral water mining licence afterwards. The mine is located at J# 7 ¥
% = 4. The subsidiary has the exclusive rights and authorities to manage and

arrange all activities in the mining area.

Water mining licence is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life which was estimated with reference to the validity of the operation
licence held and the productions plans of the Group. No amortisation was
provided for the year ended 31 March 2021 as commercial production has not yet

commenced during the year.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment on the water
mining licence at the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its
annual impairment test for the water mining licence. The recoverable amount of
the water mining licence was determined based on multi period excess earnings
method which uses sum of discounted present value of the projected annual excess
earnings. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the recoverable amount of the water
mining licence referenced to a valuation report issued by AP Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified valuer. This valuation uses cash flow projections based on

financial estimates covering a twenty-year period.

Hret

0}

(i)

EBYEE(E)

T EMEERNAEEKRRES 2 L0
B FRRER o 5% 13RI 10 4 R ¥ F SRR 5T SR
EAK= GEERER -

T+ AR ESOF T IR B ARE MY o

FOKBRIN AR ET KPR B AR - i
[~ AR A ESERKERARC &Y
MR E AR TRMB AR ARAF
FRIER K ZBRKE - ZIBRAREKAE
SRR ROKEROKE o BESR AW B # 5
AR ZMBAREEBRENLENE
BERLZHRBERETZREEE

RKBEREGHUREEFHREREE
B MaZEBEFR2EREBMPFEER
AR AR R EE B MEE - HREE
TR —F A=+ -HLEFEHRFAGE
EAE  WERLRELER -

EHy

AR ERN S B R BROKE 2 AR
BEYR - XEBEE TRFKEZFERER
e BOKFEZAIKRE £ B HRE S il EK
sE(AEEFEBERR 2 TRRERME
TRE)ETE - RZTEZ—FR-_T_FTF=
A=+—8 RKBFZAKEEEHIL2EE
A ERIGERMAP Appraisal Limited ¥ 2 —
HEERS - WEEDRE-TFH2MH
HEFAReRETRAGE -

Annual Report 2021 ¥

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

BAFE R Y RE

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(iif)

(continued)
The key assumptions and discount rate used in the annual excess earnings

calculation are as follows:

Net profit margin (% of revenue) FER R (W A%)

Long term annual growth rate used to ARERSRE
extrapolate cash flow HWRAFEHERE

Pre-tax discount rate BATHTIR X

The net profit margin is based on management’s expectation and experience
in bottled water market, adjusted for expected efficiency improvements and

expected increase in production.

The long term growth rate is the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
beyond the ten-year period which are based on the estimated growth rate taking
into account the industry growth rate and the medium or long term growth target

of the Group.

The discount rate is before tax and reflects specific risks.

The value assigned to the above assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing operations in these markets. The
management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and achievable. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amount of the water mining
licence did not exceed its recoverable amount and any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause

the carrying amount of the water mining license exceed its recoverable amount.
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19.

LEPAREY

CEE(E

Hret - (&)

(iif)

(%
ARFTEFEBERE 2 FZERZRTREX
HHT

2021
—EBE_—F

2020
T TF

19.61%-33.63%

24.34%-30.15%

3.00%
13.00%

MR THEREREHER AT BHOMLR
1E% - WEMME RS RENER BN
GEEE

EHEERARRNREEEA+EEORSR
EMEEE  DHUBHERERARE  1E
TR R R R AL E £ H R 123
HiB -

IR T A 3 R R E R

SPEELHRBRZEBERPBELR WM
EEBEINEERETHIHE K&
EBEBEZBRRR/GENTT - ARAREERER
A RKEZREEL TBHETKEE
B BFFEARESEMKENERRER N
REMAEAIEEDY BT SEBEKE
BRE B E AT IR E S8 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

At the beginning of the year
Share of post-acquisition losses and other
comprehensive income during the year,

net of dividends received

At the end of the year

Amount due from an associate
(Notes i and ii)

Notes:

20. At E N Bl 2R

F1
FANHKBRERK
Htt2mihes
kR 2 Y BB

FR

& e — ] gt ' 2 B 2 SRR
(BtatiRii)

0] As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, amount due from an associate is unsecured,

interest-bearing at 10% per annum and repayable within one year.

(i)  The maximum outstanding balance during the year was approximately

HK$6,529,000.

(i) The Group holds 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding Dong

Group Company Limited (“Spring Water Ding Dong") which has a wholly-owned

subsidiary in Guangxi, Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong Beverages Company

Limited* (“Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong"). Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong

possesses a water procurement permit for production and sales of bottled water

and is currently in operation in Guangxi. The remaining 80% equity interests is held

by Mr. Li Yuguo, the substantial shareholder of the Group.

*  For identification purpose only

Hret

0}

(i)

(iii)

2021 2020
—E-—f —T - E4E
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
201,076 210,517
(9,441)

190,826 201,076
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
2,420

R-B-_—FR-F_FF=ZA=+—H"
FE LS — R 3 D ) 2 BRIB R IR - 121 0%
FIRFE - WAR—FREE -

F N Fxm AR ERBREEL 76,529,00078 7T ©

AEEFEFBRKTRERARAR (R
KITE D) (EREA#EE —R2EMBRRE
PSRRI R R MAERA R ([EARKTE]))
Z20%MANE R o FETE KA MR FS R BUKRE 1E
SEREEREK XEERBEALE - #
TR A EAARBIERRFTEREL
A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 3| March 2021 HZE—ZT - —F=A=+—HILFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20. NEEE N Bl 2 fEm ()

Notes: (continued) Mt - (ﬁﬁ)

(iify  (continued) @iy (#&)
The Group completed its annual impairment test for interests in associates by NEBEZAEBI KD LEHEHEN T ——
comparing the recoverable amount to the carrying amount as at 31 March 2021 FR-ZZ-ZZEF=A=+—HZEHEHE"
and 2020. The Group engaged AP Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified RERBERNRZEm 2 FERERR - $
valuer, to carry out a valuation of the interests in associates as at 31 March 202 SECZEBILAABGEERMAP Appraisal
and 2020 based on the value-in-use calculations. This valuation uses cash flow Limited * AMEAEBEHEREE SR =T
projections based on financial estimates covering a ten-year period. T EN_E_TE=ZR=1+—HZEHE

REZEHETTHE - BEEDRRETF
P BBAENRARSRERIEH -

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are as AREREBEAEZEERE RN KT
follows: mr
2021 2020
=t =k —E_FF

Gross margin (% of revenue) EFE(WA%) 38.42%-53.01% 29.85%-34.79%
Long term annual growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows AREERSRENREFERERE 2.50% 3.00%
Pre-tax discount rate FiAnHr i = 12.00% 12.00%

Gross margin is the average margin as a percentage of revenue over the ten-year ERERTFEBEE ST D LB TFIEF
forecast period. It is based on the current sales margin levels with adjustments for - HTy R B ATHE B RKT - HTEE
expected efficiency improvements and expected increase in production. MERARFAHESEINMETAE -

The long term growth rate is the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows REERESGARBEEBTFHANRER
beyond the ten-year period are based on the estimated growth rate taking into EMNEER  NUGHEERAEE U=
account the industry growth rate, past experience and the medium or long term BITHERRER - BACBREBEARNFT R
growth target of the associates. HERAFHESL -

The discount rate is before tax and reflects specific risks. YRR TR RS E R R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20, ABS& N 5] > REZS (4

Notes: (continued) Kzt - (&)
(i) (continued) @iy (#&)
The value assigned to the above assumptions reflect past experience and are PEEFRBREZEBERMBELS H WE
consistent with management plans for focusing operations in these markets. The EEEBEEINRKEZEMIE 28— - &
management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and achievable. In the BEEEZEBRRARENIT - NARES
opinion of the directors of the Company, the carrying amount of the interests in RAE REBEARZEANERAETZBH
associates did not exceed their recoverable amount and any reasonably possible Huagel438  AakESBEMERANESR
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would BB IEMASBAILZ B IS T & B BUA B Z
not cause the carrying amount of the interest in a associates exceed its recoverable NAEZERNREEBL AR S -
amount.
Details of the Group's associates, which were held indirectly by the AREBEZE QR (ARBPBREHKRE
Company at the end of reporting period, were as follows: BEA)ZHBWOT -
Form of Place of Class of shares/ Proportion of nominal value of
business incorporation/  registered paid capitallregistered Principal
Name of associates and structure  operation capital held capital held by the Group activities
ML/ KEZRB/ AEBRAZERRK
LGRS EBPARRE EE4R EMEAEH HE/EREXZESL EL:E 1
2021 2020
—8--f% “F-%F
Hong Kong Spring Water Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 20% 20%  Investment holding and
Ding Dong Group B BE L@k water business
Company Limited REARRKER

EARKTREEARAR

Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong  Incorporated The PRC Registered 20%  Production and sales of
Beverages Company Limited*  sEfBAK 1z i B

RERKTERRERAT

bottled water

EERHEREK

* For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20. REEE ARl 2 (8)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates REBvHMENNEHEZE T - —F K=
for the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 was set out below which Z_EF-A=T—RUEFEZHBE
represents amounts shown in the respective financial statements of PEEHENTX  AEBEBLERGIRE
the associates prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The associates B BHREENRR 2 S EEM B RE
are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated NEIRZ &8 o Bt & R RIELRE S ®
financial statements. RAAESRIETIER

2021 2020

—EB-—F —T-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT

Current asset REEE 21,125
Non-current asset FRBEE 108,423 106,871

Current liabilities mBRIE 189,734 177,632
Revenue WA 25,945
Loss for the year REFEE (50,975) (47,862)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 mEUkes (274) 658
Total comprehensive income P EW LR (51,249) (47,204)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of the net liabilities of associates at the acquisition date

to the carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the

consolidated financial statements is as follows:

Net liabilities of the associates

as at acquisition date

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

interests in associates

Cost of investments in associates
unlisted in Hong Kong

Valuation adjustment from acquisition

Goodwill

Share of post-acquisition losses and other

comprehensive income, net of dividends received

Carrying amount of the Group's interests in

associates

REBZEBRAIFLTHERR

20. At E N Bl 2R
Bt Na PN By & E FaE Mg
RYEREIHERGAUMER

yNGIE-
RAMERWT -
2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
FEx
(33,841)
RS

B AR (6,768)
WiiE 2 (HE TR 210,217
BES 31,443
SMEWEEEEEREMEE

Was - HIBRE WARR (44,066)
NS S ey

NAElZ w2 REE 190,826

There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under the

associates.

(&)

2020
S
HK$'000
FHETT

(33,841)

20%

(6,768)
210217
31,443

(33.816)

201,076

ZEREDR T BEAAERIAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

2|. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Properties under development ERPYE
Less: provision for impairment WO ERE

Properties under development are the residential properties located
in Beibu District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC

under development for sale.

As at 3| March 2021, the carrying amount of properties
under development included land use rights of approximately
HK$122,616,000 (2020: HK$I13,130,000).

For the year ended 3| March 2021, there was no impairment
provision on properties under development.
For the year ended 31| March 2020, provision for impairment of

approximately HK$28,033,000 was recognised to reflect the decrease

of net realisable value of properties under development.
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21 BEEPYE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT

333,493 307,694
(IX13)) (89,364)

236,636 218,330

BRTPVMEDURFERNESMNTRS
AELHREZHEHEZERTEEY
%0

RZE-—F=A=+—8  BEETY
¥ EREESREL 1226160008 T( =
T_FF ¢ 13,130,000 7T ) 2 + HifE
T o

HE-F--—F=A=A=+-ALA
B BRREL SRR -

HE_Z_ZFE=F=+—HILFED
T SRR (B 18 15 49 28,033,00078 7T * LA
MR APYENAIEIRFEZRD -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BEFYEE)
(CONTINUED)
The carrying amount of properties under development is analysed as BREPYEZEREMESTOT ¢
follows:
2021 2020
—B--F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT

Located in the PRC, held on: FERERFE
Leases of between 10 and 50 years T 10E=50F ML 218,330

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. BFEHECEERYE

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT T

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZEERDE 144,717 162,005
Less: Provision for impairment B R E AR (55,664) (62,740)

99,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(CONTINUED)

The completed properties held for sale were located in Beibu District,
Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC under medium-term
lease. Completed properties held for sale which are expected to be
recovered in more than twelve months after the reporting date are
also classified under current assets as it is expected to be realised in

the Group's normal operating cycle.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, reversal of impairment loss of

approximately HK$856,000 was recognised.
For the year ended 31 March 2020, provision for impairment of

approximately HK$25,348,000 was recognised to reflect the decrease

in net realisable value of the completed properties.

23. INVENTORIES

Merchandise 7 on
Less: Provision for impairment B R E RS
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2. FEHEZER R (E)

FHEE MRERE Z BRI ELR
RERESMNTREHEILER - FRH
RREmE A HEeE+ —EARKE &
FHEZEERMEDNIBRARDE
AR ZENERRERAKE
MIEREERNREA -

BHE_Z_—S=A=+—HB1tFE "
B ER B 518 [0 18 £9856,000/8 7T ©

BE-_ZT-_EF=A=+—HILEED
T 72 9 Rk 1B B8 % 49 25,348,00078 7T A
RELEEXYETSRFEZRD

23. 78

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
1,241

(942)

299




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 5 R

Based on the payment terms of tenancy agreements, the aging analysis
of the Group’s trade receivables as of each reporting date is as

follows:

0 — 180 days 0Z180H

The Group's trade receivables are denominated in RMB, mainly
represent rental receivable from tenants for the use of PRC
investment properties and machinery. Rentals are payable in

accordance with tenancy agreements. No credit period is allowed.

24. B 5 EWIRRK

2021 2020
—E-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT
234

|

BREBEHEHZENRER  ~EEZE
SRR S ME B B2 BR#e o 440
s 8

2021 2020
—E-— —ETH
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
234

|

AEEZEPREEFAAREE
TERREHEFPHERTERENER
BEWENKES - HEeRBEHR
- WEETEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 24. BSRWERI (&)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the RBEHHEa2EZERRAE SRR
carrying value of the trade receivables. The aging analysis of the trade R ZIRMEE - AERHEERAEE
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered to be WEZE ZEBEFRRSTAT -

impaired is as follows:

2021 2020

—EB--F —E-THF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER FHET

Neither past due nor impaired AR B ARBE 234

Less than 90 days past due BERTE90H =

Past due more than 90 days 0 BAER /90 H =

234
Over 58% of the trade receivables are subsequently received or HES8BIE 5 RN H L 2 W E ek
covered by rental deposit received. In addition, the trade debtor has ERHKERZESERESHRE - itoh - &
committed to settle the remaining balances on or before 31 August SEBANMEERHER_TE_—F/\A
2021. Therefore, no impairment loss has been provided. The Group St—BRZAEBHE AT ER
does not hold any collateral over these balances. WEBERE -  AEBEWEpZ SRR

FrA MR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Non-current assets: FREBEE :

Deposits for acquisition of investment W EYHE 2
properties, net (Note i) ReFEAE)

Current assets: REBEE :

Deposits paid, net (Note ii) EfREFE (M i)

Prepayments (Note iii) TE A~ SR IE (K 72iii)

Amount due from the substantial shareholder U = A% 5 318 (A 37 )
(Note v)

Other receivables (Note iv) H At FEUBR SR (A aFiv)

The movement of the provision for impairment loss on deposits paid
and other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other

taxes) is disclosed in note 5C.

The creation and release of impairment provision on deposits paid
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of

recovering additional cash.

25. A RIE ~ HEREMER

ARX

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET

532,397 487,084

566,942 614,689
1,730 1,560

71,888 26,583
51,293 54,668

691,853 697,500

BEffRe REMERER(TEREEN
RIENEMEHHIR) OREBERE
SBPOMIFESCHEE -

EEMRBEREN RS ZBERBDFA
meEakEMEEmkER -  NEER
MGz ER—REFHTERDESZR
THREH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BTSRRI R
For the year ended 31 March 202| HE - -—F=A=+—HULFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
HK$ BT
Notes:

(i) Properties in Yantian

As at 31 March 2021, deposits paid of approximately HK$295,795,000 (2020:
HK$267,694,000, net of provision for impairment of approximately HK$5,218,000)
were related to three acquisitions of properties in Yantian where the physical
possession of the properties has been delivered to the Group. According to the
supplementary agreement disclosed in the announcement dated 3 May 2018,
the titles of the three properties should be transferred to the Group before 30
December 2018. Nevertheless, according to the announcement dated 19 June
2019, the vendor has still not registered the title of the properties under the
name of the Group. The approval from the PRC government authority for issuing
the building ownership certificate remained pending. In May 2020, the Company
received a letter from the vendor requesting for an extension of the deadline to
31 December 2020 for handling the ownership certificate matter. The Company
has engaged a PRC law firm to negotiate with the vendor to resolve this matter. In
April 2021, the Company received another letter from the vendor requesting for
further extension of deadline to 31 December 2021 for handling the ownership
certificate matter. The management will continue to follow up and take appropriate
actions.

Properties in Beijing

As at 31 March 2021, deposit paid of approximately HK$215,339,000,
net of provision for impairment of approximately HK$21,297,000 (2020:
HK$199,772,000, net of provision for impairment of approximately
HK$18,558,000) was related to the acquisition of properties in Beijing. Details are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2017. Due to
the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the construction works were temporarily
suspended and the progress was delayed. In April 2021, the Company received
the second letter from the vendor explaining the reasons of delay in construction
works and requesting for an extension of handover of the properties. Currently,
the vendor has resumed the construction works and the construction is expected
to be completed on or before 30 June 2022. The management will continue to
follow up and take appropriate actions.

Naming right and advertisement board of properties in Yantian

As at 3| March 2021, deposit paid of approximately HK$21,263,000 (2020:
HK$19,618,000) was related to the naming right and advertisement board of the
properties located in Yantian.
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25. FAFIE ~ BEREMER

%ﬂ&a)
o U 2K A T S M S

Wit -

0}

2021 2020
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
54,564
104
54,668

HHYE

RZTE=Z—F=A=+—8 " 4295795000
BIL(ZTZFF 1 267,694,000 7T + Bk
B B 4952180008 L% ) 2 B RS E
S“IHERYEWERRE  BRENECE
%ﬁﬁ%a*ﬁ%ﬁﬁlcmﬁaﬁﬁ:z
—NFRAZHZALEHBEZHIEIHE
CHEYECERANR T N\F+_A= +
BAIEETALE - A RIEBHA=T
—NERATABZAL BHMAUERE
EREERZEMETERE - FEBUNLE
REEREOAENREL R _TF
A ADREEEELINER  EXERA
HEEREFEENRERPE_T_TF
+ZA=+—H8 - ARARBEE—R+TE#
B PTEE R - UFREEE - RN =
TZ—FMA AARKREESHELES—H
Bl BREPEEESSENR %@%ﬁ
—$ERE_ZE-_—%+-A=+—8-

1B B S4B IR WIREUE B 1TE) -

bR
RZZTE=Z—F=A=+—8 " 4215339,000
7T (BRI E B E £921,297,0008 L) (=
T ¢ 199,772,000/ 7T ¢ NER IR (E B &
#718,558,000/8 ;T 1% ) 2 B IR & BILE LR
VEBE - FERRARRBHA-ZT—+
FZAZ+N\BZA% - ARCOVID-19%1E
BE MREIRSEREL BEERA
TR - RZTZ—FWA - KARERBEA

ZHER BEREIRERZEARE
SKIEMR Y - BE - BHEMERITE
EITIE BN —_ZE-—FNA=1+H=%
ZATET - BIEE S EEREYREUEE T
§jj °

HEYEDERERESR

RZZFZ—F=A=+—H8 ' 421,263,000/
T(ZZZFF 19,618,000/ 7T) 2 BEfHES
BRI 2 Y3 2 i R ESIRAERES o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMF

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —Z —

BB ERRMEE

—F=ZA=t—HLEE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

As at 31 March 2021, deposits paid were mainly relating to (I) acquisition of
properties in Zengcheng of HK$nil, net of provision for impairment approximately
HK$73,357,000 (2020: HK$nil, net of provision for impairment approximately
HK$67,682,000) and (2) acquisition of properties in Shenyang (“Shenyang
Properties”) of approximately HK$566,306,000 (2020: HK$614,053,000).

Properties in Zengcheng

The acquisition of properties in Zengcheng was terminated on |8 January 2017
and over 77% of the paid consideration has been refunded in previous years. The
Group's legal advisors has issued demand letters to the vendor for the repayment
of the remaining balance of the paid consideration and related compensation. Up
to the date of this report, the Group is still negotiating the repayment terms with
the vendor but no agreement has been reached. Based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, the Group recognised a loss allowance for expected credit
loss on the deposits paid.

Shenyang Properties

Details of the acquisition of Shenyang Properties are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 12 October 2017 and the circular of the Company dated
22 January 2018. On 24 April 2019, a termination agreement was entered into
between the vendor and the Group to terminate the sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the acquisition of Shenyang Properties. The vendor shall refund the
total amount of deposits of RMB562,500,000 (the “Refund Amount”) paid by the
Group, together with a monetary compensation of RMBI 1,250,000 on or prior
to 24 October 2019, details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 April 2019.

On | November 2019, the Group further entered into a supplemental agreement
with Mr. Li Yuguo, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company and the ultimate beneficial owner of the vendor pursuant
to which, Mr. Li agreed to take up the responsibilities to repay the Refund Amount
and the related compensation and interests to the Group, and provide his personal
assets as securities. The Group agreed to extend the repayment date to 24 April
2020, with an interest rate of 5.25% per annum. Details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated | November 2019, 22 January 2020 and 27
February 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 6 February 2020.

On 29 April 2020, the Company published an announcement on the event of
default in relation to the payment of the Refund Amount and related compensation
and interest accrued thereon. On 8 May 2020, the Company set up a special
committee, with 3 independent non-executive directors as members, to handle
the repayment and/or the recovery of the Refund Amount. The Company engaged
independent legal advisors to work with the special committee. Details of event
of default and the special committee are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020 respectively.

On 3 July 2020, the Group and Mr. Li Yuguo entered into the further supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which, Mr. Li agreed to repay the Group the outstanding
amount in sum of RMB584,778,676.47 (the “Outstanding Sum”) in the following
manner: (a) 10% of the Outstanding Sum shall be repaid on or before 2 January
2021; and (b) 90% of the Outstanding Sum together with the interest to be
accrued on the Outstanding Sum at an interest rate of 10% per annum shall be
repaid on or before 2 July 2021. Details are set out in the announcement and the
circular of the Company dated 7 July 2020 and 24 August 2020 respectively.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has received from Mr. Li Yuguo, the
Outstanding Sum of approximately RMB83,870,000 in accordance with the further
supplemental agreement.

25.% ﬁ

WE%E)

(i)

C BEREAER

( & )

RZEZ_—F=A=+—R Cfl&EsxZ

(1) MR RMIEI ) M2 TS T (IR AL E R
4733570008701 ) (— BB Tt -
FNBR IR B B 5 49 67,682,00078 7T 18 ) R (2) We B8
B (BB Y 1) £9566,306,000%
TT(ZZE-TF 614,053,000 T)BH -

RS
IR B B R —+tF—A+)
Hﬂi&tLﬁéaﬁﬁﬁemuwiﬁ

o AEEZARERE MBS B E;
u ERERENRERBARMEZHK
Ei$%i5% K%lmﬁaﬁﬁz
&

—
=

WN#°%%

CENARERE MR E o RIEA
ﬂ&ﬁ“%%wﬁ AEBFHE IR
HEEEREREREE -

I8
]
278
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—NE—A-+-HBZ&XK-
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H Wik URIEEBKEEGY
&) HoBHEAR-_ZE—HAETA
ZtmHBkZAREANEED FIESAEA
R#562,500000 L ([RZEHE]) RARYE
11,250,0007c 2 fifE € - BEAFBEHNA AR
BfA-—T-NFONAZFTMAZAER -
RZZE—AFE+—A—R8  AEFEHEAQF
i%%% EIERNTESUREHFOHEK
BEnBEATERAA4EE— ST UHAEW
Bl TEAREAEETHEBERERS
BURMEEEERMNBETFASE - WRHE
ZEABEUEERR AEERBEERER
B E-_T_THFWA=+MA - ¢ﬂ$ﬁ

5.25% © ﬁ%#ﬁﬁm$/ﬂ5%ﬁ:z
F+—A—A ZZ-_FTFE-A-+=-HK
—E-TE-_A-++AZASRAAFA
MA-T-TE-AAAIEE-

RZZE-_ZFPA_+NA  ARBRARE
¥R S F L R AR R 1 B 5 R B DR
HEHTNERE - R_F_F 0
AARRIBHERE & (KB A=RBIIEH
TEE)  EEEER,/FRERREHE -
ARBREBILARBMEARNZEES
B BEHEMHRBHNEERZFHBEARIR
ARBAPRH T fi@ﬂ ThAER
2oEERA\AZALRN
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MAEEERRSTE A ARES84,778676.47
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—AZHS®ZAEE  Rkb)X FIEH
90%3EB [ AR (8B FRIBIRFE K 1 0%:TH 2 25t
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. ? ﬁ e REMEIR

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

/TA ( i) )

Hret - (&)

(i) As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, prepayments mainly comprised prepayment of (i) RZTZ=Z—FR=-F-_FTF=A=+—8"

indirect cost incurred for properties under development. BNREZERRERTPUEEEZBER
7N o

(iv)  Asat 31 March 2021 and 2020, other receivables mainly comprised other tax (vy RIZB-_—FR-ZB-ZF=A=+—8H"

prepaid in the PRC and advance payments for business related matters. HEMEREREZRIERMEMPRFBIER
XM BT -

(v)  As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, amount due from the substantial shareholder, v RZIE-Z—FR-ZT-TF=A=+—8"
Mr. Li Yuguo, represented the compensation and interests receivable relating to FEWEFERETTEEENRBEREER
the termination of the acquisition of Shenyang Properties as detailed in (ii). The A EL FNEEG Y EGBREE RER
amount is denominated in RMB. FE o WFHIHEAARKEE -

Up to the date of this report, the Group has received partial interests of HEAREAY  ~AEECEKIZTERH AL
approximately RMB 15,076,000 from Mr. Li Yuguo. FT X AR 26 5 T 24D AR 85 15,076,0007T ©
. [— N /
26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 26. ¢z®$1ﬁ AT AR Z TR

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE

2021 2020
—R——fF —T-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REB LT ZRAES

quoted bid price RMmE

Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash were denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
HK$ BT
Others HA

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control restrictions

imposed by the government of the PRC.

(a) Restricted bank deposits
As at 31 March 2021, restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$2,699,000 (2020: HK$2,484,000) are deposits subject to
regulatory restrictions and are therefore not available for general

use by the other entities within the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$3,000 (2020: Nil) are deposits subject to regulatory
restrictions. The amount is not available for general use until one
of the trade payables of approximately HK$8,903,000 is fully
settled.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash RITEB MRS

27 RITEBREE
RITEBRIE A TS

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
32,976

14,830

741

48,547

BTPBEELIUARBHEZRE LIRS
SEMANETEBRFERZIMNEE F
PRl o

(a) ZERFRITF
R-E-_—F=ZA=+—H8" %R
#9817 77 2 #92,699,00058 70 (= Z
ZZHF 124840008 70) B EER
FINER  BEAEEANEMEE
FEERE—RAS -

RZTZ—F=A=+—8" ' XR
HIER1TF RA3,0008 T (ZE=F
F-BI)RREERHINTR - &
SHRELAE—RALZ  HEEZHTF
—IEE 5 FE T AR 50 498,903,0007% 7T
BB -

(b) B2 RE2ZEY

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

e
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AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B S FE{FBRFX
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FEIT

Trade payables 2 S ER R 60,597 72,995

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of the RERARBBESHAHAXEZAR
reporting period, based on the contract date or invoice date: B HRMNBRFRER T
2021 2020
—2--F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBR FHT
0 to 180 days 0Z180H 8,337
81 to 365 days 181 2365H 28,543
Over 365 days #EiA365H 36,115
72,995
The trade payables are not interest bearing, normally settled within six BORMNERRRE - B —RERKE
month after receiving suppliers’ invoices and denominated in RMB, HEMEZERFTAEARNGEETLEAAR

MEHE o
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Land value added tax payable JES T IR B
Accruals st E A
Receipts in advance T IR

Other payables (Note i)

Amount due to a shareholder (Note iii)

Other payables and accruals are denominated in the following

currencies:
RMB AR
HK$ BIT
Notes:
0] Other payables of approximately HK$8,457,000 (2020: Nil) is interest bearing at

(i

(iif)

10% per annum.

Amount due to non-controlling interests is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

Amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

HAth T BR R (A aEi)
Amount due to non-controlling interests (Note ii) J& 1~ FF 128 B 1

>t

m A

JES R S ERIB (K atii)

TH ([ atii)

29. HiWEEH IR K FEFTE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHAT

18,576
2,655

30,690
9912

61,833

Hip AR M ER B AU TG 5
& :

2021 2020
—E-— —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
50,836

10,997

61,833

() EAbFENERFRA8,457,0008TL(Z T T F :
) RFFIR10%:T 2. °

(i) BNFEREEFA/EER 2oREE

(iy RENRRFBAEER 2ORKRERESR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
At | April 2019, 31 March 2020,
| April 2020 and 31 March 2021

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
At | April 2019, 31 March 2020,
| April 2020 and 31 March 2021

30. IR AR

EE
FAXEIEO BT 2 T Ak
RZE—hFW™A—H -

—E-TF=—A=+—H"

“E-FFA—ABK
—E--F=ZA=+—H
ERTRAR

FREEOIEITZ EBR
RZE—-—NFNHNA—H -

—T-FF=A=+-8 .

—ECTFMOMA-BR
—E-_—%=A=t—H
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Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EERHE o]
HK$'000
TET
250,000,000,000 2,500,000
7,611,690,000 76,117




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

31. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 3ILEERIEERE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on the RBEE_ZST - FF_ZT_ZTF=H
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements =+— ElJtﬁJ_tT RERE BRI &R
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are as follows: BRAEEREEENERDS RE
LU

Fair value adjustments arising

from acquisition of subsidiaries

KENBAREE AL ERE
Properties
Investment under
properties development Total
REWE  BRBYE st
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
FET FERT THT
Deferred tax arising from: TH&ERELNELSE :
At | April 2019 RZE-NFMA—A = 16,452 16,452
Credited A
~ to profit or loss -B#% - (4,904) (4,904)
- to other comprehensive income —-HEmrElE - (971 (971
At 31 March 2020 and | April 2020 R-ZE-ZEE=RB=+—-HK
“E-RFNA-A - 10577 10,577
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHTB AR 19,902 - 19,902
Charged Mg
~ to profit or loss -8B 570 - 570
— to other comprehensive income —HEftprEWE [,557 887 2,444
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE--%=ZA=+-H 22,029 I'1,464 33,493
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

32. CASH FLOW INFORMATION R.BEREEHR
Net debt reconciliation EXFFEH R
Liabilities from
financing
activities
REBMETE 2EE
Lease
liabilities
HEEE
HK$'000
FET
Net debt as at | April 2019 RZE-NAFMNA—HZ
(- 5542
Cash flows BemhE (2,934)
Other non-cash movements HEmIEReEH) 293
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 R-E-_EF=ZA=1+—HZ
BT 55 2,901
Cash flows BenhE (2,860)
Other non-cash movements HEmIEIReEH) 899
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 R-—E-_—F=A=+—-H2
B FE
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Acquisition of Chi Sheng Trading Company Limited

(“Chi Sheng”)

For the year ended 3| March 2021, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of, and the shareholder’s loan advance to,

Chi Sheng at a consideration of RMBI100 million (equivalent to

approximately HK$109,845,000). Chi Sheng is principally engaged in

investment holding and its subsidiary is principally engaged in property

investment. The acquisition has been completed on 24 June 2020.

33. AT 2 7]
WS E S AR A A ([ )

BHE-_ZEZ-—F=A=+t—HILEE "
IR S BB B AR 2 100% 2 BT AR AN &

MEBMNZBRRER -

RERARKE

100,000,000 7T ( 48 & 7 #J 109,845,000 /%
T) c MBREBREREERLENE
REIEBREYERE - SEREER
—ECFFRNATMOEEK -

Carrying Fair value
value adjustment Fair value
BRTE B N ERE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHIT T
The identifiable assets acquired AWEBHFEARINEER
and the liabilities assumed at FrRiEEE
the date of acquisition
Investment properties REME 41,223 79,607 120,830
Property, plant and equipment YE - BE NMRE 14,619 - 14,619
Trade receivables B 5 R K 36 - 36
Prepayments, deposits and BNHIE  REek
other receivables Hib U AR =X 1,969 = 1,969
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 3,064 = 3,064
Trade payables B SRR (33) - (33)
Other payables and accruals B EMBER R EASER (8,882) = (8,882)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAR = (19.902) (19.902)
Identifiable net assets A B RIE ERE 51,996 59,705 111,701
Gain on bargain purchase ZEWRERE (1,856)
Total consideration HmRE 109,845
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash outflow from the acquisition REWEBZESREFEE
Cash consideration paid ENEERE 109,845
Bank balances and cash acquired ik BB IRTT 48R MR & (3,064)
106,781
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

33.

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Chi Sheng Trading Company Limited
(“Chi Sheng”) (Continued)

The Group recognised a gain on bargain purchase of approximately
HK$ 1,856,000 in the business combination as a result of the fair
value of Chi Sheng's identifiable net assets over the sum of the
consideration transferred. The fair value of the identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition is referenced to a valuation report issued by

AP Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified valuer.

Chi Sheng contributed a profit for the period of approximately
HK$10,502,000 to the Group's results for the period between the
date of acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on | April 2020, the
Group’s revenue for the period would have been approximately
HK$35,265,000, and the Group's profit for the period would have
been approximately HK$92,369,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of the
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved, had the acquisition been completed on | April

2020, nor is intended to be a projection of future results.
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33. WEBFTE 2 B (&)

WrEBEE ZER LA ([ e ])
(#&)
BREERZAI#HIEEFEZATES
REEREBEE  WASEREKEH
TR BB UL E5 49 1,856,00078 7T © A
WHERH AJHANEEFECATE
Ti2ZEL A BB HERIAP Appraisal
Limitedit B 2 (HERE ©

BERUEAHREREHRBMAELSE
B A R 2 48 A5 2R 49 10,502,000 7T 2
HIRE A o

i i EHE N —EFWA—
H5ERK - /\JZK%I,HHWH&AHq%@ﬁ
35,265,000 7T - A £ B HA A s ) G
#9592,369,0008 T - EEARHEAR
HAER YT —ERSMHBEEER

TECZFNA-BRERRERGER
M ARERBA KRG LKA - IR IFEAF

RERTFREHOTRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

34. RESERVES

(a) Capital reserve

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 31 May 2013, the Company effected the capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation 2013") which became
effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the consolidation of
every twenty-five issued and unissued shares with a par value
of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share; (ii) the reduction
of issued share capital whereby the par value of each issued
consolidated shares will be reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25
by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$1.00 on
each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share of HK$0.25
each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
to the capital reserve account of the Company; (iv) the sub-
division of each unissued consolidated share into five reduced
shares of HK$0.25 each.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 12 November 2018, the Company
implemented a capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation
2018") on 13 November 2018 which involved (i) capital
reduction, pursuant to which the issued share capital of the
Company were reduced by a reduction of the par value of
each issued shares from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01, which reduction
comprised a cancellation of such amount of the paid-up capital
on each issued share so that each issued share were treated
as one fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01 in the share
capital of the Company immediately following the capital
reduction and the credit arising from the capital reduction were
credited to the capital reserve account of the Company; and (ii)
sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued shares of par
value of HK$0.25 into twenty-five new shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each.

34, {#1E
(a) B2 M5

BER—_Z—=FRARA=+—HE
TZRRFNARE BB 2RI
BERARANEBITEREH(ZZE
—ZEBABEHDIRZT—=FX
A=BEREFIEHB=_THERS
REE/0.0SHE T 2 B BT R ARE
TIRGOEHR—RE MRS ¢ (i)El
BEBEITRA - Bt - SRERT
EHRGO 2 EEREBTHEERE
PR 2 BHIRAI100B TESTR
TH {8 7230.2578 7T 2 & IR AR 19 T B
1258 TTHIR Z=0.2578 7T ¢ (iii) ¥ A
BRI EE A 2 s R AR R &)
ZERBEER  (VEREKREITAM
B AAREREER02SHE
TLZESHIRAR D ©

BERZZE—NF+—A+ZAE
TZRRFRARE L@iB2FRA
HE ARV -_ZE-NE+—A
T=RETEAEH(ZE—NE&
RER]) - LS ROBRKERE - &
AR BERE FHITRD 2 EER
0258 LI Z0.01 77T » LA
RARZBEEITRA o fLIRAHEIR
BRETEREFTROZTHEER
E2EHRAE  FEREETRN
R EBERAHIR & W2 EAR TR
Kpr BREEARCOIBITLZES
B o R AN Bl AT R A o i BR BB B
ARRR 2 ERRBEER R (ii)HF 48
EEALSBTZERERERR
BOZROBZTERTRGD - &
BEEA00IEIT »
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AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34. R (&)
(b) Special reserve (b) 15 5t#
The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the AREBZEAFEEENEEEZEALE
nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of BB AR RO EEBLEARRR
the group reorganisation over the nominal amount of the shares EEWERB AR ZREMEITZ
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition of RO EEEEE -

the subsidiaries.

Details of the movements of the Group’s reserves are set out in the AEBRBELHFBIANRNEBEZES
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73. MEmEEE -
Details of the movements of the Company’s reserves are set out in RKABREEEFBEERNGEAT B RE
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. Ft5E40 -

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EANENE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following RI|EEAR » REBE A T ERNEIE -

capital commitments:

2021 2020
—E-— —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Contracted but not provided for: BRI AR

Acquisition of investment properties W BB & Y 45,879 42,330
Property development expenditure MEBRERY 107,893 99,935

Construction in-progress for ARG K EE 2
water exploitation activities in Hunan FEEIR 800 772

154,572 143,037

180 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A 7]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE —F ——

BB ERRMEE

FZA=+—HILFE

36. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

K&

BIMEHBRAE (A&

£JF0"), incorporated in the PRC,

provided corporate guarantees to third parties amounting to
approximately RMB 100,000,000 (2020: RMB100,000,000), detailed as

follows:

(h

)

On 17 April 2014, R3#E&IF1 provided a corporate guarantee to
RNERITE—FOZIT ("RERTT(—)”) for a recurring bank
loan of RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party, AEE HY
BEOWARRAR (AERE". In 2017, KERTT(—) took a
legal action against RiEEH for the recovery of the aforesaid
loan. On 2| December 2017, FE & & KE ™M+ F A RZER
(the “Court") ordered R H B to repay the loan to AEIRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest.

On 23 May 2014, K#&B|F1 provided a corporate guarantee
to Ri#IR7T(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000
granted to a third party, XEEEYEBRAR] (“REERE").
In 2017, KiE#RTT(—) took a legal action against RiEEE for
the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 28 December 2017, the
Court ordered RiE:BFE to repay the loan to AEIRTIT(—),

together with relevant legal cost and interest.

36. B EFRER

RIBE-_—F=ZA=+—H  A2aR
PRI A S 2 2B T B A 7] K B A
EARAR ([ KEEIF ) ME=FHE

HARERE

=149 A R #100,000,0007C

7777¢ AR #100,000,0007T)
T

RZZE—MFNA+tH » KEEH|

(h

)

Mgt RERITE —PLZIT([KE
RIT(—)DAE=ARERBEYWE
EWABERAR([RERME])EK
Z%JE IR#R 1T E A K % 50,000,000
CREARER cRZE—L
¢ RNERT(—)HRERBERD
AR LABE FHMER - BN
E—tHF+A=+—H EEH
ﬁxﬁ$ﬁAE%ﬁﬁiﬁnﬁ
Aﬁ@%ﬂﬁt@ﬂ%(—) HEE
EREEEEERARAE -

R-ZTE—MmMERA=+=H " K
HAMBEARERIT(—)ME=ZA
RNEFEEMERBR QA ([ KEE
BDEBRZBEREITERARE
50,000,0007C * RHE A RER o R
ZTE—EF  RERT(TIHEK
HEFEERLAEFD  EE it
BER-RZZ—tF+=ZA=+N

B A an S K@ ERE R KERTT
(—) BEEN  ERAENEEE
RAEFE -

Annual Report 2021 ¥

181



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & —Z —

36.

BB ERRMEE

—FZA=t—RHILFE

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

(3) On 19 August 2014, Ki&
to Ri#IRIT(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000

EWESAMRAT (ANEER").

) took a legal action against A2

BIF1 provided a corporate guarantee

granted to a third party, A&
In 2017, RAEHRIT(—
for the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 21 December 2017,
the Court ordered K32 to repay the loan to A IRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. The loan
principal of RMB50,000,000 has been repaid by A E on 30
December 2017.

IS5 BERXRBR AR (K&
JIE ") has pledged its properties to secure the bank loans stated

in (1), (2) and (3). The estimated value of the pledged properties

Another independent guarantor, A &

is over RMB250 million. The directors believe that the aforesaid
loans, interests and other costs can fully be recovered from the sales
proceeds of the pledged properties. In addition, A EIF obtained
counter-guarantees given by BlEHE (KE) GR A A (“AlEH
E"). BIEHE undertook to compensate A:EEIF any legal costs
and economic losses that may be suffered by A AIF] in relation to

all the aforesaid corporate guarantees.

On 27 December 2017, a restructuring loan agreement was signed
by RENEE with AEHRFT. Under this agreement, a new loan of
RMB245,000,000 was granted to A& |IE &
loans, interests and other cost stated in (1), (2) and (3) and then

for the repayment of the

the corporate guarantee provided by KiZEIF will be released.
However, the procedure to release the corporate guarantee is still in

progress.
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36. B EFREE(E)

B) RZZE—OFENA+IRE » KEE
Mt RERIT(—IMB=FREE
HESERDE ([ REEE )R
ZfEEﬁEﬁE %A R # 50,000,000

CREARER - RZTE—+
$ CRERIT(-)HREZRRE
HOERFR - NEBREARER -
m_;*tiJr*ﬂ*JrfEl Ok

Pras @ REZH M NERT(—)
BEEX  ERMEEEEERARH
B oRZE—+F+=ZA=+H"

REEBEEEERZAEARE

50,000,0007T °

S—EABIERAREIDEEXERR D

A REIEEDER) ~ Q) K&OB)ERAT
M EFEEM R - GEHIEEYE

MEBEBRBARK2ET - EFMEME
bz & - ME REAE R R AR H
SEMYEZAEFET2REKD - it
Sh - KEBRIFAAEIZEWE (KB)BRA
B(TAIEME | BB RER - AER
MELPTE bt 2 R RIEREEEDER
XHREZEEER - BIEHEK
AW RRERZERIM

RZE—+F+=-_A=++H " K&I&
R AEIRITRV BHERRE - RIE
% 0 AR E 245,000,000 H) ¥ E &

BT REIEEAEE () - QROG)AT
MEOER - FEREMER - AE8EKR

HAERIMATREN R BER - AW
IR A RRROEFDEETT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - ZE-—F=A=+—HILFE

36.

37.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The directors are closely monitoring the situations and will continue
to use their best endeavor to resolve the corporate guarantees above.
The directors are also assessing the legal position of the Group and

may consider taking legal actions if appropriate.

Up to the date of this report, the Group did not suffer any loss from
the above corporate guarantees. Having considered the counter-
guarantees provided by EI3EMIEE, pledge of valuable properties by
RiZEJIEYs and subsequent settlement arrangements as stated above,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of
the financial guarantee contracts are insignificant at initial recognition
as the probability of suffering any significant loss by the Group from
the above corporate guarantees is low. Accordingly, no provision
has been made in the consolidated financial statements for these

guarantees.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make

monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$346,000 (2020:
HK$1,309,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

36.

37.

BREREE(E)

ESIZYEEAREN  YSEER
RAB R B RBIER - EFIRIE
FHEAREBHPEEMN - W EE BRI
EEHARETE o

BEAREAY AKEYRBR LA
REERMRZERMBX - KRRAZE
WERHKARER - KEIBEEEED
MERERE B s RREE R TR - K
REEFRR/YBEREHIFERY
RRERE Y AEX - ARASER Lt
RAERMEXEMBERAEROEER
o Bl BERZFERNEE T
WARPERRE -

RRERIETE
AEKERES 2 AERRESREBY
BHEAES ((BES])  BEL2E
ERAKEZAENHBE  MERA
242 ESER - ARBRSEES
B 3t &t 8138 B -

FEMBARZEEIPEBRFRYZ
B EHRKEMNEIKE - - BEH B
REVAMEBARENGFIFENEHFEET
B Z R AERERNZES -
AREEERRBHEE 2 —RERRA
At EIEH PR K

BAZARIRABRZARIOA
346,000/ 7L (ZE ZF4F : 1,309,000/
L) DASEZEFEBRAEE L E
FERS 52 55T 8l 2 R o
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

38. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38 EEBEEA LIRS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are
disclosed below.

(A) Transactions with related parties
(i)  As disclosed in note 25(ii), compensation and interest
income relating to termination of acquisition of Shenyang
Properties for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020, which were receivable from Mr. Li Yuguo who is
a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
director of the Company, are recognised as follows:

Compensation relating to termination BIEWEEG X 2 B

of acquisition of Shenyang Properties
Interest income relating to termination 4% |FUKBEERSE 2
of acquisition of Shenyang Properties B A

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group paid
advertising expenses to a related company, amounting
to approximately HK$1,341,000. The related company is
controlled by the directors of the Group, Mr. Li Yuguo and
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James.

(i) On 4 April 2019, the Group entered into a supply
agreement with the associate, /& P8 RKAT K mBR A
A], pursuant to which the associate has agreed to supply,
and the Group has agreed to procure the bottled water
products. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
total consideration paid by the Group was RMB1,418,340.
Details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 4 April 2019. 80% equity interests in
the associate is held by Mr. Li Yuguo who is a substantial
shareholder, the chairman and an executive director of the
Company.
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ARAEEMBAR(REIAREZ
BMEAL)HAZXZEREGEAREE -
BYERAMERE - lREZFHETTH
WARHMBEPREEI  AEBEER
WREALHZ X HFBRENT -

(A) EFEA L 2X 5
() WBIEE25(H) TS HEC
T _—FR_FT_FTF=H
=+—HLFE  BRIEWE
BEYERBARREER
e EFRWTESTEHL
E 2 MR E LA BA -

R
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
12,610
14,338
58,957 26,948

iy BE_F-_—F=A=+—
BIEFE A&EBEEZXNTF—
MEAEARMNEESRAINA
1,341,000 7T © % BEE R T A
rEEEETIHAEREIR
BBt Al o

(il RZE—NFEA@A @ K&
B EE Bt N ) B 7R R OK AT IR 8K
mAB R A RE M — 1D HE
BB BEARERE
HE  MASEERERER
HKER BE_ZT-_ZTF=
A=+—HLFE  RxEBX
RNERRER/ARE418340
T o ARAFBERNALE R
BZE-NFNANHEZA
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e ISR M EE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE - T - —F=A=+—HILtFE

(B) Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year

was as follows:

Short-term benefits GHBRE A
Retirement benefit scheme RIRBFIET B

(B) TEEEANEZFHY
FTEEBABREAFEZHMM
-

2021 2020
—s- & ZEZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
3,286

91

3,377
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. B R BIRFTS
Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting RBEHR  AEBZEEWNB QR
period are as follows. ST o
Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capitall  value of paid capital/
incorporation/  registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
KRARELZ
LAY iR,/ BRRE/ ENRAEE
WEDFRE ReEn i EF R 2fER 305 C AR TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E& i
Adco Rich Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US| 100% = Investment holding
RBRAHE LER B 100% - REER
Asiaciti Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$ | = 100% Property investment
B EEERAT A Liak iy - 100%  MERA
Century Strong Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Ordinary US| 100% = Investment holding
BRAHE LER B 100% - REER
Continental Joy Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$| 100% = Investment holding
RBRZES  EEK Ee 100% - RERR
Chi Sheung Trading Company Hong Kong Ordinary HKS | = 100% Investment holding
Limited &R g BT - 100%  REEK
BEEHERAT
East Dynasty Group Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$| 100% ~ Investment holding
RESEERAA ABRIES ERR B 100% - REER
Good Union (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 = 67% Investment holding
EB (P E)ER AR A LAk 100087 - 7%  REERK
King Lotus Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary US$| 100% ~ Investment holding
RBRIES ERR B 100% - REER
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of

Place of shares/

incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held

AL,/ i,/
MELAREE Beny aMEAREH
Man Lee Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
ENERBRATR Bt gl

World Land Development Limited  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary

EHRERERAA RERUHE Lak
SMEEERCRINERAR  The PRC Registered
(note) H Eail}
SMeEERCRINERAR
(Hit)
ERHERER(RI)BRAF  The PRC Registered
(note) i BAll}
ELHEEEE(RIBRAF
(Hit)
KEBIMEHER R (note) The PRC Registered
ANERNEMBRAR(MZE) H Ea}

39. fiEB A BB (1)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRRE/
HMEX

HK$2
BT

US$!

Ey

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000
AR #60,000,0007T

HK$205,000,000
205,000,000 7T

Note: The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the

PRC.

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

FRARAELZ
BNRAEE/
305 E AR

Directly Indirectly

E& %

- 100%

- 100%

100% =

100% =

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

TEEHK

Management services and

securities trading

EERBREREE

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Investment holding

RERR

Property development

ESH

K ZHBARRRTERIZEEIEBEL

3
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
AL,/ iR,/
MELAREE Rewy EMEAREH
BRESENCRINERAR  The PRC Registered
(note) e B}
ERESHARINARRA
(Hiit)
FEEEFACKYNERRE  The PRC Registered
(note) i ]
REERHEA(RINERAHF
(W)
A KEERERARAF  The PRC Registered
(note) HE Ra
R EEXRERARLA
(Hit)
WENEEERRKERAF  The PRC Registered
(note) i ]
HENEERBERKARAA
(Hit)

39. MY B X B 1B (&)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRRE/
HMEX

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

RMBI,000,000
AR 1,000,0007T

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

Note: The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the

PRC.

188 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | TN & RIZER AR A A

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/

registered capital

held by the Company

FRARELZ
BRRAEE
aMERZBA L

Directly Indirectly

=83 &

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 67%

- 67%

Principal activities

FEEHK

Investment holding

REER

Property investment

NERE

Property investment

nERE

Production and sales of

bottled water

HERHEREK

Kt ZHBRARRRTERIZEEIEBEL

o
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place of

incorporation/

Name of subsidiaries operation
ML/
HELTLE mEnY
RYFHERERRARDE  The PRC
(note) F
A EREERARAA
(Hz)
tRBeREARAT The PRC
(note) F
TRBEEHEARAR
(W)
LEWEREERAT The PRC
(note) F
LEMEREERAR
(Hz)
T EKEERMBRAT] The PRC
(note) e
L EKEERMERRA
(H:t)

Class of
shares/
registered

capital held

fisRe,/
EMERER

Registered
A

Registered
afi

Registered
A

Registered
afi

39. fiEB A BB (1)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered

capital

BRRE/
HMEX

RMB100,000
AR 100,0007

RMB20,000,000
AK#20,000,0007C

RMB500,000
AR #500,0007

RMB10,000,000
AR 10,000,0007T

Note: The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the

PRC.

Proportion of nominal

value of paid capital/

registered capital

held by the Company
FRARAELZ
ENRAEE
305 C AR
Directly Indirectly
E& %
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
Hfat

o

Principal activities

TEEHK

Property investment

nERE

Trading of bottled water
BEKES

Trading of bottled water
BEKES

Property investment

NERE

ZHE AR ARPEKY 2 BRI EBEED
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For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. (B A EFFB (&)

(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or assets of the
Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of

the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

Place of interest and voting

incorporation/ rights held by non-

Name of subsidiary operation controlling interest
B3 A FERERBFEEZ
WEARER it BERERRREEZEALL
2021 2020
B CZZ-TF
% %
Good Union (China) Limited Hong Kong 33
B (PE)ERAR BB

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.
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Loss allocated to non-

RERKFAEMMER - HERRHE
ERAREEZBEHES

BEERRLERIMZAKEZHB AR
BAKRBEZRENEERERFE - &
ERREINEMMBRRZFBESEF
BRIEARITE

TREIANEERBE AT S
FEMBRRZHE

Accumulated non-

controlling interest controlling interests

PREFERES &3t
ZE#R FERER
2021 2020 2021 2020
“¥--F ZT-TF ZBS-F CTCTH
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TER TAT TER TATL
570 IREIM 102,066 102,189

BARARESABEAIERE R 2 M
BRBZHMBERMEHINMT - AT
MHBENBERTEERNEHEAZE
Ll



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. (VB A RIFFE (58)

(CONTINUED)

Good Union (China) Limited ER (PR BERQF
Summarised statement
of financial position B AR R R E 2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current assets REEE 19,531
Current liabilities mEBBE (60,281)
Current net liabilities MENBEFE (40,750)
Non-current assets IEREEE 351,572 350,419
Non-current liabilities EmEBGE = -
Non-current net assets ERBEEFE 351,372 350,419
Net assets BEFE 309,293 309,669
Accumulated non-controlling interest RETFEIE RS 102,066 102,189
Summarised statement of
comprehensive income 2ERERPE 2021 2020
- ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Revenue WA -
Loss for the year NEEFEE (48,896)
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 E = (1,105)
Total comprehensive income 2HEHW AR (50,001)
Loss allocated to non-controlling interest DB IR RE RS 2 i (16,136)
Summarised cash flows HEREME 2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT T
Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,400
Net cash outflow from investing activities (8,192)
Net cash inflow from financing activities —
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (245)
(7,037)
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AR R E R

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF

40. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 40. %’Z\\ﬂ

THE COMPANY

Summarised statement of financial position information of the RN TR E B R 7 B #S AR O 3R B R
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: B
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET THET
Non-current assets RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SN o - _
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 15 25
Right-of-use assets FREEE 494 2,469
509 2,494
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - EZe Rk 902 901
ﬁimﬂgﬂﬂlﬁﬁw\
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEUS T B A B 3k 18 2,025,772 [,843,147
Bank balances and cash WITEBERS 786 12,324
2,027,460 1,856,372
Current liabilities RBAE
Amount due to a shareholder FE T R R RRIE 2,761 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERMEB AR RIE 95,106 31,624
Other payables and accruals Hib e BRI N BT & A 960 1,051
Lease liabilities HEAE 361 1,889
99,188 34,564
Net current assets REEEZFE 1,928,272 1,821,808
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERTHEAER 1,928,781 1,824,302
Capital and reserves BEARL #E
Share capital AR 7 76,117 76,117
Reserves HiE 1,852,664 |,747,640
1,928,781 1,823,757
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - 545
1,928,781 1,824,302
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by BB S - —F A _+mNH

CEESHOELEETIE i THA
+RESBRT

the Board of Directors on 24 June 202 | and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
FRELE BREHBEE
Director Director
EF EE

192 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | TN & RIZER AR A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

40. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 40. 75D Tl 2 B R SR 25 3 B
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF =(E)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Share-
based
Share Share  Capital payment Exchange  General Accumulated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
URABA
E
R RHEE BARE xGRE EXRR -REE ZHER 45
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HKS000  HKFO00  HK$000  HK$000
Tér TEr TEn TEn T  TEr  TEr  TER
At | April 2019 RZZ-NFEA-B 76117 1597179 2,025,156 15948 17 180030 (1480643) 2413814
Loss for the year AEEFE - - - - - - (590057)  (590057)
Total comprehensive income AEERENE
for the year ] - = = = = - (590057)  (590,057)
Transfer & - - - - 7 bl - -
Lapse of share options BRES = = - (15%48) = = 5,948 =
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-FF=f=1-A 76117 1597179 2,025,156 = - 180057 (204752) 1823757

Profit for the year TERET
Total comprehensive income AERRENG
for the year EE
At 31 March 2021 R=F--=f=1-H 16,117 1,597,179 2,025,156

- 105,024

- 105,024

105,024

105,024

- 180,057 (1,949,728) 1928781

Annual Report 2021 F#

193



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ara R Rk M T

For the year ended 31 March 202| HE — T -—F=A=+—HItFE

41. DIVIDENDS 41. |2
The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for EETEZRNEBEEZ-_Z-_—F=H
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). =t+t—HUIEEZzAEMBEE(ZE=Z

FfE) -

42. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF 42. RETIBRFES M HHRR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised HAMBRRE VN B —F A
for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2021. N HEKEEE S HOE TR -
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Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1t—HLEE

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“EtF ZF)\F ZF-NF —T-FF —B--F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000
FTHET FTAT FAET THT TET
Results E44
Revenue A 6,651 = 32,760 201,510
Profit/(loss) before taxation KRR ALER, (EE) (90,321) (132,720) (170,811) (359,824)
Tax (charge)/credit RE(RX)Er 317 8576 17,530 4,904
Profit/(loss) for the year from AEERHERE
continuing operations B2 mH,/
(E18) (90,004)  (124,144)  (153.281)  (354,920) 90,694
Profit/(loss) for the year from REEDHKIE
discontinued operations EB2mM,/
(E18) (3,800) (1,454) (6,112) — =
Profit/(loss) for the year REZHF,/ (BE) (93,804)  (125598)  (159393)  (354920) 90,694
Attributable to: JEAS -
Equity holders of the Company ANREERAA (92,794)  (123989)  (158,640)  (338,784) 91,264
Minority interests DERR RS (1,010) (1,609) (753) (16,136) (570)
(935804)  (125598)  (159393)  (354920) 90,694
|
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Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BREHE
Shareholders' funds RERES
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As at 31 March

R=ZA=+-H

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
“EtF ZF)/\F ZFNF ZT-TF —B--F
HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000
THT TR TR THET Tz
2433016 2860646 2720466 2115424 SEEAL
(557.950)  (606,082)  (388,168)  (201,707) BNUELREL)]
1,875,066 2254564 2332298 1913717 RRAULIEE]
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